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CHAIR BAISA: ... (gavel). .. Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: My name is Councilmember Baisa. I'm the Chair of the Planning Committee
for the Council. And today is January 8th and it is now almost ten minutes after 9:00.
And I'd like to call the meeting to order. There is a quorum present. First of all, I'd really
appreciate it if any of you have noise making devices in your pockets if you'll put them
on the silent mode, I'd really appreciate that so we don't have anything to interrupt our
proceedings here. I'd like to introduce the Committee Members that are present with me
today. I have my Vice-Chair Jo Anne Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Aloha.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning, Jo Anne.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: I also have Councilmember Bill Medeiros from Hana, I mean, from East Maui.
Hi, Bill.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you for being here. Also have Councilmember Michael Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning, Mike. And unfortunately, one of our Members, our Chair, Riki
Hokama is excused today. He could not be here. From the Department of Corporation
Counsel we have Michael Hopper, our Deputy Corporation Counsel. Good morning,
Mike. And our Executive Branch representatives we have Jeff Hunt, our Planning
Director.
MR. HUNT: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: Good morning. And Mr. John Summers-MR. SUMMERS: Good morning.
CHAIR BAISA: --also from the Planning Department. And our Committee Staff, our loyal
staff, David Raatz, our Legislative Attorney and we also have Clarita Balala, our
Secretary. Public testimony will be accepted starting in a few moments. Those wishing
to testify should please sign up with Clarita over here. Testimony will be limited to three
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minutes and testifiers are requested to state their name for the record and to indicate if
they are representing anyone beside themselves. I'd certainly like to know that. We
would like to know that.
We have two items on our agenda today. We have PC-2, which is an update on the
General Plan, and we have PC-2S, which is Home Occupations. Before we get any
further, I would like to make an announcement that the Chair would like to call our
morning recess this morning at 10 o'clock. And we will recess for IS minutes. That will
allow those of us who must go upstairs to attend a press conference that the Mayor has
called and to at least, we won't be able to stay for the whole thing because I'm told the
conference will last rather long. But I would like to afford the Members and anybody
else who is involved to at least hear the Mayor's remarks. And she will be going on first
so hopefully that will give us IS minutes. And I beg the indulgence of those of you that
are here today and I promise you that will be the only break we take this morning. We'll
go right through until the meeting is over after that. So, just giving you forewarning.
Our first item this morning has been scheduled to allow the Planning Department to
provide a status report on the General Plan update. The General Plan is the County's
preeminent long-term planning document. This morning we will learn about the progress
made by the Planning Department and the General Plan Advisory Committees. We will
also get an update on the predicted timeline for Council action, which is very important to
all of us on Council because we're trying to plan our lives so that we'll be ready to work
with the General Plan draft when it gets to us. Before I call on the Planning Department,
we will now accept public testimony on this item as well as testimony on PC-2S for any
testifiers who cannot wait until that item comes up.
Without objections the Committee will now accept public testimony on PC-2 and for
those who cannot wait, PC-2S.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS
CHAIR BAlSA: We have a number of people who have signed up to testify and our first
testifier today is Fred Ruge. He'll be testifying on both items followed by Susan Moikeha
who will be testifying on PC-2 .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. RUGE: Good morning. My name is Fred Ruge. I live in Wailuku and I'm testifying on my
own behalf. I'd like to first thank the Committee and the Council for giving me this
opportunity to speak and I also think that we should thank the General Plan people for all
the work they've done in the last two years. But what I'd like to speak about is I think
that the plan started in January of2006, this is January 2008. That's two long years. And
I think we should have a sense of urgency about this. There's one similarity between this
plan and the Iraq war, there seems to be no end to either one of 'em. What I would urge
when all is said and done, let's make this a done deal.
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Now, I'd like to talk about PC-25, Home Occupancies [sic]. I'm in favor of this Home
Occupancy [sic] 100 percent but I do think that we should amend it. I think we should
put a clause in there that all bed and breakfast that's been in existence as of December 31 8t
of last year should be grandfathered in. And this would take all of the, the workload off
ofMr. Hunt's Department over there and satisfy the public. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Mr. Ruge. Any questions for the testifier? If not, thank
you very much, Fred. Our next testifier will be Susan Moikeha and she will be followed
by Sandy Baz.
MS. MOlKEHA: Good morning, Chair Baisa and Committee Members. And my name is Susan
Moikeha for the record. Let me begin by saying I wish you the best efforts this year in
making good decisions in your Committee especially those decisions that affect the
residents of this County. I agonized over how to present this and not to do it in such a
controversial or contentious manner. I want to say that any time that I've had any
comments that Mr. Hunt and Mr. Summers and other staff members have always given
the opportunity to express that directly to them and I appreciate that. They may not
always agree with my opinions but they at least give me the opportunity to say
something.
And, and so, I'll begin with this statement. The Maui County Department of Long Range
Planning Division under Department Head John Summers, previous Director Mike Foley,
and current Director Jeff Hunt has never met a deadline to the GPAC regarding the drafts
of the Maui County Policy Plan and the Maui Island Plan since we began this process in
2005. They did not meet their deadlines in 2006 to us, in 2000--January of '07--July of
'07, October of '07, and most recently December 13 th , 2007. At our October 18th , 2007
meeting, we were told by Mr. Hunt that we would not be receiving the Maui Island Plan.
And I would like to quote directly from the minutes of that meeting found on Page III
and it begins with Line 18 and this is Mr. Hunt speaking, "we received a virtually
complete or almost complete draft plan. The bad news is we formed a team to review
that plan. We've got some concerns with it and we're asking or we want changes that are
more significant than what we originally anticipated."
On Page 120 of those same minutes beginning with Line 19, Mr. Hunt continues to say,
"let me try and give you an idea of what the plan is and what our concerns are. We think
the plan is way too thick and voluminous, and verbose, and it came out as more of a full
on master plan for the whole County. We think that a lot of it can be cut out. There's a
lot of redundancy with the policy plan that you folks have already worked on. So, it's not
so much an issue that the quality of the work is unacceptable to us, to us that it's trash. A
lot of it is formatting, a lot of it is redundancy, a lot of it is information that we don't
think is necessary in an Island Plan because we've already got this Countywide Policy
Plan. So, the document is literally that thick"--and he indicated about five inches--"and
we think it should be more like that thick"--and he probably about an inch, half inch
indicated that through a gesture.
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I have some real concerns, as I said already, this is not the first deadline that they missed.
What, after re-reading the minutes again and thinking about all that's transpired over,
since '05 the question comes to my mind of transparency. How is such a thick document
as you already, I already indicated by reading you the minutes coming directly from the
Director, that no one knew what was coming down? In three years that the consultants
Plan Pacific and Chris Hart were working on this Maui Island Plan and the Policy Plan
nobody knew what kind of document we were getting until October?
Mr. Hunt ... Mr. Summers was out on leave. I'm sure he had been in communication
directly with Mr. Hart's Department and knew exactly what was happening, but why
didn't anybody else know? So, it was a huge surprise to everyone.
I think the other thing that I need to say is in all fairness to the Department they always
explained why and there was a list of reasons why from weather to staff shortages to
illnesses. I mean a litany of things that went out to us again prior to the 13 th meeting of
December. I sincerely believe that there are things that are beyond our control and
illnesses are one of them. And my sincereness [sic] goes out to all of those who have
experienced them themselves and their family members and that's beyond the control of
anybody. However, there are things happening in this Department that are plaguing them
and are causing us the inability to receive a draft and be able to start the work that you
folks appointed us to do back in '05. We are now going on three years. I've been to
every meeting we have held, 30 meetings total thus far and have been an observer and a
participant. And I can tell you that there's a problem here -CHAIR BAlSA: Ms. Moikeha?
MS. MOlKEHA: --and it's within the Department.
CHAIR BAlSA: Could you please wrap it up?
MS. MOlKEHA: I would also say you always look to yourself too. You know the internal
problems of the ... while I point out the internal problems of the Department I also look to
the committee itself. We have struggled but we formed an investigative committee to, to
give attention to those problems and we think we have things that will help us to do a
better way of making it a more efficient review. And I hope that the Department would
just fix what is wrong and give us a plan so that we can do the work that we've been
required to do. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Ms. Moikeha. Questions for the testifier? Ms. Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. Susan, I can sense your frustration with the whole process.
And my question to you is apart from all the things, you know, in terms of the delays and
the reasons for delays, do you think there is something else at play, you know, that's
fundamental to our inability or the County's inability or the Department's inability to kind
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of move this thing forward? It, it seems like it's been an albatross around everyone's neck
including ours. So, is there anyone thing or is it a multitude of things?
MS. MOIKEHA: I, I think there's issues that only we as we participated can, can see. I've
mentioned a couple of them today. There seems to be a lack of communication. Why is
it that only one person working with a contractor knows what's going on but the rest of
the Department including the Director is totally surprised by a thick document they
received in late October? I think that's one issue that's probably apparent to the, to all of
us. However, there's, I'm sure there's internal things going on that we don't know
anything about and, and I don't necessarily have to know that. All I have to know is what
affects me and what I'm supposed to do as a GP AC member as well as the other
members. So, I think that's something within the Department they need to work out and
they need to do it quickly.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: And, and do you believe that this is impacting perhaps the morale or
the overall, I guess, feeling that the members have about the whole process because of
what you were told originally for what you signed on for?
MS. MOIKEHA: Yeah. We were supposed to complete this. And this was represented to this
Council back in '05 in six months our review was supposed to be done for both
documents. We are now going on three years. We've only finished one review of the
Island Plan, of the County Policy Plan and we have yet to receive the Island Plan. This is
going to, if we received it tomorrow we still have 180 days to work on this, which will
take us far into the fall. And I, I think you mentioned the morale, people are, have had it.
I mean at our last meeting on the 13 th it was a huge frustration level that was expressed.
But in the, more important the problem leads to the fact that as we were trying to get a
draft to comment on urban growth boundaries, development is moving on. And I think
that we're frustrated, the public's frustrated. I will say that there are few developers who
are holding off until we are done. Well, how long do they need to wait? How long can
they financially wait? But they made a commitment and have said it in testimony to us
but yet others are moving right along through the entitlement process. And things are
going to get built before we even have a chance to have a comment on these urban
growth boundaries and that is a huge problem.
Also, the data is now probably outdated. It's three years later. When we started getting
data it was two years from '05 prior to that. So, now we have obsolete data, we have
development moving on, and we don't even have a draft yet. We're very frustrated.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I think that's really good for us to have this
meeting. And I really appreciate your candor because if we can't get this kind of
feedback about the frustration--I hear it on the periphery--but because I don't attend the
meetings I don't see it personally. But I certainly can agree with you that we could all do
a better job. And I know that originally even the Council had, you know, we, we all I
guess have contributed to some of this. But anyway, I, I certainly appreciate you saying
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what you had to say and I hope the Department and certainly I think it's constructive, you
know, and that's the way I take it. So, thank you very much, Susan.
MS. MOlKEHA: I have just one last comment, Chair, if I could. Just, you know, like I said we
looked to how we have been performing as a committee and we have had internal
struggles. But the first thing you do is you identify it and you resolve it. And this, and
these committee, this group of 25 people are about to do that as soon as we can get a plan
to implement it. And on a personal level, I step back and think, are my expectations need
to be adjusted here, then someone please tell me that because I'm just spinning wheels
here if that's true.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Well, thank you very much-MS. MOlKEHA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: --Susan, and thank you for your service.
MS. MOlKEHA: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any additional questions? Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Ms. Moikeha.
Your comments to say the least are quite sobering. You know along with, you know,
you've expressed your concerns here publicly. Have any of the other GP AC members
stepped up to the plate so to speak and expressed their concerns to Mr. Hunt as well as
Mr. Summers on this? Because I'm concerned that we, you know, we may have a revolt
here on the GP AC. People might start quitting and we all lose as a community. Can you
share your thoughts on that?
MS. MOlKEHA: I mean people talk and, you know, they express their frustrations. How far
they take their frustrations and to whom they take 'em, I'm not aware of that level. But I
can assure you they have expressed themselves on the floor and I'm sure they've talked to
Jeff and to John. I mean they're approachable people. I mean like I said earlier in my
beginning comments I can talk with Mr. Hunt, I can talk to John. They don't have to
agree with me but they are approachable people. So, in essence they are aware of our
concerns and they have been for a while. How they handle it and what they do with that
is, you'll have to ask them.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Have you folks considered asking the Mayor to intervene on
this? And the reason I ask because Bill 84 was, you know, former Councilmember
Tavares' creation, if you will, when she was on the Council, and any thought to that about
getting the Mayor involved to help expedite this process? Because it's concerning a lot of
us and it's, in my opinion, it's turning Bill 84 into a joke.
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MS. MOlKEHA: I would say in regards to Bill 84 'cause I was at the beginning of those
processes. I was there when the Mayor came with her staff to the communities and on
more than one occasion I followed that all the way through. I happened to be on the
commission when we also gave comment to this, this Committee. It was a new ordinance
that was now being applied in the last few years and implemented and there have been
some huge problems, huge problems. I wouldn't go so far to say that it's a joke or it
makes light of, of a process but there are some strong problems here. And one of the
main things that I thought was a huge mistake is that in '06 that they came back here for
an amendment to split the process. That process should never have been split. And if
there was a matter of interpretation that led to that whole process of this amendment, then
they should have stopped and thought about doing it and correcting it so it could be
reviewed together. I think that was a huge problem.
I didn't know that then. I don't know if they knew that. I mean they're more experienced
as planners then I am of course but having gone through this I would say that was a big
mistake. And to answer your question about going to the Mayor that would be a good
next step.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any additional questions for the testifier? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. Ms. Moikeha, thank you for your
comments this morning. In, in, in looking back at the size of the GP AC committee, what
are your comments about the size and being able to work with a 25-member committee?
MS. MOlKEHA: Let me, let me say that having met all 25 people and have been with them now
for almost three years, I have gotten to know them on a personal level, but especially
those I didn't know before through other venues. But they are great people and they are
very passionate and they are very dedicated to the process. We have a very good
attendance rate. I would say it's almost 80-90 percent attendance of 25 people over 30
meetings. People feel very passionate about this process and we're still here in spite of all
that has happened. I do think that 25 people is too much to manage. We formed an
investigative committee in October. We met during the month of November. That was
also to give the Department time to work on this second draft and scale it down but it was
also to give us time to work on our internal issues that were plaguing us in to how we
were to review a document. It was very painful going through the first few months of
this year to try and review this document of the Policy Plan.
And so, working with those 12 people I want you to know it was a very posItIve
experience. The most positive experience I had thus far in this committee process and I
also want you to know how much we achieved by consensus. We came out with 12
recommendations for the review process also addressing increased public participation
and appropriate schedule. Those were the three items that we were to tackle and we
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came out of it in a consensus format. I really think 25 people are too many people to
work with. It could easily be scaled down to 13.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank, thank you for that. Yeah. And my question
was certainly not to question the passion or expertise of the people on there because I've
been to a number of meetings and can see how each person on the committee brings a
certain expertise and a passion to that process. But my question was, yeah, how do you
take care of the mechanics of 25 members? My next question is was there plans during
your process and continuing in your process where the elected leadership of the
committee, and I assume you have a chair and vice-chair?
MS. MOlKEHA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Did they ever have some kind of discussions with the
Planning Department separately from a regular meeting just to see how things could
either be better handled or, or expedited or moved along quicker?
MS. MOlKEHA: Yes. Our Chair I don't think is here today but the Vice-Chair Dick Mayer is
here and I'm sure you can ask further information from him on that. But, yeah, they meet
regularly. They look at the agenda. So, I am sure that they had opportunity to express
their concerns.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Ms. Moikeha. Mahalo, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Any further questions for the testifier? If not, Ms. Moikeha, thank you very
much for being here today.
MS. MOlKEHA: Thank you. And I want to thank the Chair for all your assistance and for your
attendance at our meetings. We really appreciate it.
CHAIR BAlSA: Well, I was going to just make a very brief comment to that effect and I wanted
people to know that I have tried to stay very close to the Maui GP AC. I've attended
many of the meetings. Unfortunately, during the holidays I kind of got derailed along
with you not meeting very often. And so, I kind of, didn't attend maybe the last two or
three. But I did watch the group form. I did watch how you, you know, began the work
on the Policy Plan. And in the beginning of course it was kind of difficult. Everybody
was learning to work with everybody but as it took off I was very impressed and continue
to be impressed with not only the quality of the members but the quality of the input.
Everyone contributes. I mean it just goes around the table and everyone contributes and
it's good stuff. I think everybody is working really hard so we have a good plan.
So, I'm very grateful for, to you for coming and I see there are many of the GP AC
members here today. And we certainly are interested as the Council in your remarks, in
your input. I think it's really important that we find out, you know, your frustrations, talk
about them, have our Planning Department share their perspective on it. And hopefully
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we can come to some kind of place where we can move ahead. It's important. This plan
is very important. Thank you so much.
MS. MOIKEHA: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Our next testifier is Sandy Baz, and Mr. Baz will be followed by Stan Franco.
MR. BAZ: Good morning, Madam Chair-CHAIR BAlSA: Good morning.
MR. BAZ: --and Council Members, Committee Members. Aloha. My name is Sandy Baz. I'm
the Executive Director for Maui Economic Opportunity. And it's my pleasure to come
here to testify in support of PC-25 of the Home Occupation Bill. Forty-two years ago
MEO started helping people to become self-sufficient. And about 11 years ago, formally,
we started helping them become self sufficient in creating entrepreneurs helping them
with business classes, with loans to be able to start small businesses. One of the biggest
costs of starting a small business is the rent. It's finding a location and then paying the
rent for that. And this bill will allow what is actually happening now to become kind of a
legal operation.
Home occupation as it's defined in County Code Section 19.04.040 is very restrictive in
what it allows. It is to me a good description of how, what would be allowed in, in, in
residential areas or in, in areas that it's not allowed in businesses right now with the intent
of making sure that the neighbors and the neighborhood is, would stay intact. Things like
not having employees, not having, you know, auto mechanic shops, and things like that
are important. But allowing a small business to be able to whether it's a, you know, sole
proprietor, single person starting their own job, their own business, it gives them a step.
And then, you know, then they can step forward into once they've grown their business
into some of the commercial areas. And that's why I testified in support of Maui
Business Park Phase II because we need more commercial areas, too, but this is a huge
step for this.
And I really appreciate the, Committee Chair Baisa for bringing this because this is
something that when she was Executive Director of the MEO, you know, she had pushed
for it as well so we appreciate that very much. So, thank you. Do you have any
questions? I also have testimony from MEO's Business Development Corporation CEO
Suzy Thieman who couldn't be here today but she's the one that, that lives this on a daily
basis.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Mr. Baz. Yes, I have a very personal interest in this
bill. About 11 years ago I believe when MEO started the Maui Micro-Enterprise, the
MEO Micro-Enterprise project which is now MEO Business Development Corporation,
we tried to introduce a bill at that time because we were concerned about having
entrepreneurs, having a place to begin their businesses. I think most of us know that
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mega businesses start in the garage or in the kitchen of somebody's house or a bedroom,
wherever you, you find space to do it, and then you grow it into a big business. Well,
because it got confused and complicated with vacation rentals and bed and breakfast it
never went anywhere. Bed and breakfast law was established and it was done but the
vacation rentals as well as the home occupations went to the side and it's been there too
long.
And all of us who live on Maui know that there are home occupations going on all over
the place in our neighborhoods. And I think that it's time to look at it, discuss it, have the
community decide what we want, and let's pass a law so we're no longer living in the
gray areas. This is not a good way to function in our community. So, I'd like to thank
you very much, Sandy, for coming today. Members, any questions for the testifier? If
not, thank you very much.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Our next testifier will be Stan Franco and he will be followed by DeGray
Vanderbilt.
MR. FRANCO: Good morning, Chair Baisa, and Council Members. My name is Stan Franco
and I speak for myself. As a member of the GP AC for the last two years, I want to share
my update of the GP AC as I see it. I do not speak for any other members of the Maui
GP AC. First, I volunteered to be a Maui GP AC member because I felt very strongly that
the citizens of Maui needed to express their desires on the development of their island
and I wanted to be one of their voices. Second, the Maui GP AC has had a lot of stops
and gos [sic] along the way including the changing of the ordinance that governed our
work. When the Maui GP AC finally got working, we had a difficult time with 25
members trying to share their concerns in the process of developing a Policy Plan. We
were told by legal counsel that we could not subdivide the committee into smaller groups
and had long discussions with little progress. It was frustrating for me.
Third, the Maui GP AC learned from that initial lesson on the Policy Plan that we needed
to do something different. Because the Maui Planning Department had not completed the
Maui Island Plan to give to the Maui GP AC, 12 members including myself had five
meetings through the month of November to review our process and our desire to make
things better and to have more public participation. This committee was sanctioned by
legal counsel. We came up with a plan, which was presented to all the members in
December. At this point, we are waiting on the Planning Department for their version of
the Maui Plan, Maui Island Plan so that we can develop and work through this process.
To summarize, I've been very distressed with the slowness of the process and as I
explained it was initially because of the unwillingness of the committee of 25 vocal
concerned citizens. You know I'm Portuguese but I think everybody has caught up with
me. There are a lot of people that speak out and not, are not Portuguese as well. Also,
contributing to the frustration is that the Planning Department had problems staffing our
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meetings. We have asked for more meetings but with limited staff and other issues like
the TVR being on their plate it did not happen. At our last meeting, Planner Bill
Frampton--who I see here--suggested that the Planning Department should hire an
outside contractor to shepherd the Maui Island process. I urge this Committee to find the
funding to make this happen.
Land developers are saying publicly that they cannot wait for the GP AC to complete its
work before going forward with their development plans. We should not let the
developers dictate to Maui's people how our precious island should be developed. So, I
beg this Committee to give us adequate resources to complete our work. And I will
commit to this Committee that I will help the 25 to work effectively and timely to
develop a good Maui Island Plan for Maui's people. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Mr. Franco. Members, questions for the testifier? If
not, thank you very much for coming, and thank you for your service on the GP AC. Our
next testifier is DeGray Vanderbilt and he will be followed by Dick Mayer.
Mr. Vanderbilt. He probably stepped outside so if you don't mind, Mr. Mayer, ... (end of
tape, start IE) . .. and when DeGray comes back we'll have him speak. Mr. Mayer will
be followed by Pamela Tumpap.
MR. MAYER: Here's DeGray. Let DeGray go.
CHAIR BAlSA: Oh, okay. DeGray, you're on. Thank you, Mr. Mayer.
MR. VANDERBILT: Good morning, Madam Chair-CHAIR BAlSA: Good morning.
MR. VANDERBILT: --and Members of the Planning Committee. My name is DeGray
Vanderbilt. I'm a member of the Molokai GP AC and I'm Chair of the Molokai Planning
Commission and we have our final meeting on the Policy Plan on ... tomorrow as a matter
of fact. I guess where I'm coming from is that I find that it's been very hard for us, just
like Susan said of the Maui GP AC, we have, we had several GP AC members, and we had
only 13 but they were all dedicated and they were passionate. We had the Head of the
Chamber of Kamehameha Schools, Head of MEO, Head of the US Extension Service,
Queen Liliuokalani Trust was represented, several businesses. And it's a really good
group that we're trying to hold together 'cause on Molokai if some resolutions pass, then
the Molokai GP AC will, will take on the Maui Island Plan, which will be our community
plan.
And, but everybody has got to make plans and we're just getting further and further out
and we were worried about the Maui Island Plan because I look at the schedule and now I
don't know when, when the Molokai Community Plan will start. But we're ready to go.
We have staff there. We have everything. If it's a staffing problem we've agreed with
Long Range that we would start by taking our existing community plan which we feel is
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very good but needs some tweaking and that would be the outline to move forward with
our community plan. But I see on the schedule that was presented today that I don't
know where Molokai is. I see the Maui Island Plan ending sometime, time in August or
October of 2008 and then there's this long line that says, technical studies and preparation
for the Molokai Community Plan, which would be our Island Plan, and this arrow just
going out into the middle of 2009 somewhere.
And as I said we have a really good group of people that are dedicated. I have right here
with me the, the list of all the GP AC's and their attendance records. And like, like the
Maui GP AC we had excellent attendance. We had one person that was appointed by the
Mayor that didn't show up to any meetings but other than that we had right at 80 percent
attendance over the meetings. And I see from the Maui GP AC that I think they were
even higher than 80 percent, which is amazing with 25 people. But what, what we need
to do is we've been frustrated by this whole new implementing section. It's, our Planning
Commission looked at it and we didn't want to go with it.
All through the review by our Planning Commission of the plan we were asked to
consider moving a lot of the policy statements into an implementing section. And we
didn't see where an implementing section was called for. It's called for in the Island
Plans or Community Plans but we didn't see it in the Policy Plan and we were really
worried because the bill calls for the Community Plans to be consistent with the Island
Plans and the Policy Plan, and if there's a conflict, the Policy Plan prevails. And so here
at the last minute because Planning feels that some of the policies sound more like
implementing actions they're going to create this implementing section. So, we asked to
see all the work that was done. We got a memo from Jeff on December 11th at the end of
the period and they weren't able to get that stuff to us.
Okay. Well, and then going on I think one of the main things is we get documents from
the State and County all the time, draft documents that are in Word form. Okay. For
some reason Planning just does not like to put draft documents in Word form. And you
can get things out electronically, people can make their comments, and it helps do
constructive testimony. And I would hope that Planning, when they send this thing up to
the Council, they have it in Word form posted and all the minutes from the GP AC and
Planning Commission meeting minutes in Word form or so they can be cut and pasted.
Because our, our minutes on the Web now can be cut and pasted and I think it's very
helpful for the public to be able to create some constructive testimony.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. ...
MR. VANDERBILT: And I had some other things but I can't do it in three minutes so -CHAIR BAlSA: Well, we ...
MR. VANDERBILT: --or two minutes or whatever.
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CHAIR BAISA: I think we're into four now, DeGray, but thank you very, very much.
MR. VANDERBILT: All right. Thank you, Gladys.
CHAIR BAISA: Hold on. We may have some questions. Members? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. DeGray, with regard to the people and, you know, the way that
you're speaking and, and I may just be reading something into this but it kind of seems to
me like the individuals that you're talking about are, are they, you know, close to just
giving up or are they getting frustrated? Or do you think there's going to be a problem if
this doesn't conclude soon or what do you sense?
MR. VANDERBILT: All of you, Susan mentioned that there's developers that are trying to hang
on and, and be respective of the community planning process and there's others that are
moving forward full speed ahead for their entitlements. We're having that problem on
Molokai as you recall with a very controversial project that the Land Use Commission
rejected accepting their EIS. Now, they've come out in 30 days with another 2,650 and
they're pushing it forward on us. And, and that's a major thing and we have the State
coming into our community and, and taking up all these land use boundary amendments
that are contrary to our community plan. And so, the longer it goes without us getting
our Island/Community Plan together, the more we're at risk because Molokai is at a
crossroads now where it can do things right. And we, we have a community that's
dedicated and we just want to get moving on this. And I know there's staffing problems
but, you know, we don't have to have 20 staff members and all these consultants over
there. We can sit down and, and, and do a lot of the work, you know, ourselves if we
have to.
So, I just, I just hope, and, and staffing is a problem. I, I have to, to admit and, and they
have funding approved for staffing and they haven't been able to fill some of it. So that's,
that's the real, that's the real key and, and until they get the staffing it's going to be hard
for them to meet all these timelines on Lanai, Molokai, and Maui. So, I don't know how
that problem is going to get resolved but we hope that Molokai just doesn't continue to
get shoved by. And these resolutions were sent up to the Council by Planning in April of
last year. And so, hopefully they can be acted on and this is to allow our GP AC to look
at the Island Plan, which will be our Community Plan.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Similar to what Ms. Moikeha had mentioned, do you believe that
even to help expedite the process that you have if it can't be Planning that it be outside
consultants to help move the process along or at least do whatever they can to give you
the information that Planning perhaps is not able to do because of short staffing? Do you
think that would help?
MR. VANDERBILT: Well, all of that takes money and I guess, you know, if, if you give
Mr. Hunt a blank check, I think things would speed up considerably. But I don't know
what the answer is but right now they've just got their hands tied because in addition to
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all of this stuff, they have in Maui just thousands of applications for one thing or another
coming in all the time. And, you know, we, we got our own Planning Commission and
staff and, and we're set to really move forward basically pretty much on our own with
little help from, from Planning but it seems that Planning doesn't want to let Molokai too
far off the leash because they don't know what's going to come back. But there's nothing
to worry about, you know, we do a good job, you know, we're professionals over there so
anyway.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you very much, DeGray.
MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Further questions for the testifier? If not, Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
being here this morning --

Mahalo, Madam Chair.

Mr. Vanderbilt, thank you for

MR. VANDERBILT: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and for your testimony. How, how many members on the
Molokai GP AC?
MR. VANDERBILT: Thirteen.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
13 members?

Thirteen.

Okay.

And you find it manageable with

MR. VANDERBILT: Oh, yeah. Very, well, we were all very close before, you know, Susan
said they, they, she established a working relationship with some of the people she didn't
know. Well, there's nobody on Molokai you don't know. So, we, and, and these are
people that have been around a long time. Most of 'em born and raised on Molokai and
I've lived on Molokai more than half my life so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and so, being a 13-member committee and as
you described the members all know each other, have worked with each other on other
occasions, your moving forward with the 13-member committee is that restricted by
waiting for documents or, or processes from the Planning Department to get to you?
MR. VANDERBILT: Well, I think they need to do a lot of technical studies and reports that are
usually done by some consultant somewhere else and nobody reads them anyway
basically. But anyway, it's nice to have I guess to say you did it. But the other thing that
needs to be done these resolutions before the Council have to be passed or our GP AC will
not be the ones that really review our Molokai Community Plan. So that's the other thing
we got to do. I think that's in Danny's committee so I think he's trying to move forward
on that.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Vanderbilt. Mahalo, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Further questions?
MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: If not, thank you very much.
MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Our next testifier will be Dick Mayer, and Mr. Mayer will be followed by
Pamela Tumpap.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much, Council Members. Happy New Year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Happy New Year.
MR. MAYER: I just want to make one comment first about the ordinance. I didn't sign up to
speak on the home occupations. I see it, you know, I hadn't seen it before. I just see the
word "home occupation" stuck in here on several places but I don't see any definitions of
what are home occupations and what, what, what needs, and, and sort of the background
of what things would be allowed or what, what would not be allowed in terms of noise,
parking, et cetera. And that might be something you may want to consider.
As you may know I'm vice-chair of the GP AC. And I would like to second everything
that Susan, Stan, and DeGray said previously. I don't want to repeat it. I was intending
to make many of those same comments. There's a great degree of frustration on the
GPAC's part. Now, we've gone over two years. We still, still don't have the islandwide
plan. I would like to add some of the things that was said. I think that one of the
problems is that the Long Range Planning Division seems to be short staffed. It's not
because of lack of funds or lack of positions. I suggested about three or four months ago
that we talk, the Chair and I go and meet with the Mayor and see if we can get some
additional positions reallocated perhaps from other departments because there was so
much difficulty in getting staff people, hiring them apparently, finding them, that we
meet with them.
And the Planning Director, Mr. Hunt, said when I made that motion that we just want to
help 'em out, we want to get more staffing, he said please don't help me, don't help
micromanage my department. I don't want that kind of help. And so, the group decided
not to meet with the Mayor and ask for that help. I think that was a mistake. The
Department has had generally a shortage of, of the needed people and several of 'em have
had medical problems of their own and some of them have transferred out of the
Department, et cetera, over the last year or two. And so, there is really a shortage and
that's something I, I would like to see addressed.
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Also, I made a personal effort to try to get people for the Department. I sent out emails to
various people and said, do you know anybody who would like to work in the
Department, who would be qualified, and I got a call from the County Civil Service
Director, I believe, Ms. Kreig, I think that's the title. And she scolded me, said that's our
job. Don't try to help us do that job. So, it's been a real difficulty getting the people in
position. That's one, one major problem I want you to be aware of. It's been frustrating
for the Department. Mr. Medeiros asked several questions about the number of people on
the Committee. The 25 people I think are very good people as Ms. Moikeha said. I think
we have an excellent group. They're representative of each of the areas of the island.
The problem is not the size of the Committee but it's the fact that the Committee always
has to work really as one large group. For example, if we wanted to have a meeting, we
wanted to break up let's say into four subgroups of five or six people, seven people each
to work on different issues, we cannot do that because of the Sunshine Law. And there's
some real problems with that. And so, I just want to recognize it's not the, not the, the
number, sheer number of people, it's just that the mechanics of the Sunshine Law which
would prevent that so that members of the public couldn't be sitting in on all of those
separate groups. Something has to be done with the Sunshine Law, which I'm strongly in
favor. I think there should be transparency. We're not trying to meet behind closed
doors. We're meeting in public where anybody in the public could sit and, and listen to
what's going on. It's just that we can't have those parallel discussions during our larger
session. I see my time is up so I'll, I'll stop.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Questions for the testifier, Members? No questions,
but thank you very much, Mr. Mayer, for being here.
MR. MAYER: And thank you all for your support. And, and I do want reemphasize something
Susan said and others have said. The, the developers who are out there, who have been
patiently waiting for us to do, to do, us to do our work have been very frustrated and now
trying to bypass the whole GP AC process and sticking their projects through, sending in
EIS documents. And I think you're going to find yourselves under tremendous pressure
from many, many sources and we are going to find that the plan that we produce
eventually will be based, A, on older data, and B, will have seen some projects approved
that perhaps shouldn't have been approved and we're not going to be able to look at the
comprehensiveness of the thing. So it's a real need for us to work quickly.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. And thank you for all your leadership on the GP AC.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAlSA: Our next testifier will be Pamela Tumpap. And I suspect she'll be our last
testifier before the break. And when we resume, the person who will follow Ms. Tumpap
is Bill Frampton. Thank you.
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MS. TUMP AP: Thank you, Chair Baisa, and, Members of the Planning Committee. Actually,
I'm here today representing the Maui Chamber of Commerce on the home-based business
issue. And I have provided testimony for you that it would be longer for me to cover
than three minutes so I'll give you some of the highlights. As this issue unfolded for us
along with the transient vacation rental issue, we received many concerns from small
businesses greatly concerned that they were in the same boat. In other words, there
wasn't, while there were recommendations and, and memos from the Planning
Department on what kinds of things were acceptable under home based business, there
wasn't broader legislation that allowed for many of the things that are currently
occurnng.
And so, the Maui Chamber of Commerce has taken this on, on two fronts, currently. We
actually have created a Home Based Business Subcommittee of our Government Action
Committee which has been looking at the documentation produced to date and reviewing
what kinds of businesses and what definitions for home based businesses are currently
viewed as acceptable and what we'd like to see viewed as acceptable. And then we've
looked at what are the concerns from the members of the Maui Chambers of Commerce.
While our survey is still in process, we do have 80 responses to our home-based business
survey. And so, I'd just like to highlight a few things and also to ask that you take in
mind that the Chamber of Commerce which has over 940 members, 88 percent of our
membership are representing small businesses and, and we define that as 25 or less
employees.
So, as we looked at the issue of home-based businesses actually 99 percent of those who
responded to the survey said that they know somebody operating a home-based business.
Only one percent said they did not. Of those, 97 percent said they were in favor of
home-based businesses. It doesn't mean they didn't have qualifications with concerns.
What they wanted to see was could those concerns be addressed. The primary concerns
being of course parking, traffic, and noise level. Secondary concerns being unsightly
appearance and smells, and things of that nature. But at the end of the day, 97 percent
said they felt that government legislation could address those concerns. So, actually, our
group is very in favor of appropriate legislation to allow appropriate home based
businesses that do not seriously negatively impact residences, residences and
communities.
If you look at, I hope you have our letter in front of you but I'll just kind of highlight,
some of the standard things that everybody seem to be in broad agreement of and we
noted the ones that are 50 percent plus; accounting, internet based businesses, graphic
design, technical consulting, professional consulting, wedding planning and coordination,
family counselors, childcare and daycare. Actually, we threw in vacation rentals not to
tie the issue together, but 72 percent were in favor of vacation rentals, which was tied
with music instruction, exercise instruction, nursery, hair, and hair and styling. Hair
styling salon, personal care, actually, came out as 50 percent in favor yet later there were
a couple of people who noted in the survey they had concerns about those types of
businesses.
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Generally, where a business should be in a commercial or industrial area we feel they
should be. What we want to do is broadly allow appropriate home-based businesses that
are not negatively impacting neighborhoods. And come up with regulations that allow
for the broadest possible grouping and then have these businesses be, you know, under
that regulation, paying their taxes, and contributing to our community. And so, we ask
for your support on this and when we have the full survey we will share that data. And
we ask that certainly legislation be put in place before enforcement.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Ms. Tumpap. Thank you for being here today and
thank you for the work that you're doing.
MS. TUMP AP: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: You, you make a point that I want to make also to people who might be
listening or watching and that is that we would really not want to mix up vacation rentals
or bed and breakfast in the Home Occupation Bill that we're looking at. Those have to be
kept separate. If we begin to mix them up, we're going to repeat the old stuff that
happened before and we don't want to go there. We're trying to move forward not
backward. So, thank you very much for pointing that out. Members, questions for the
testifier? If, if not, we'd like to, again, like I said, thank you very much. The, for the
audience we are going to take our morning break now. We are going to be back here at
10:15. You need to understand that there are limitations on the press conference upstairs.
It's my understanding that it is open only to the Press and to a limited number of Council
Members because of Sunshine Law. So, we'll be back at 10:15. We are now in recess .
. . . (gavel). .. . .. (end of tape, start 2A) . ..
RECESS:

10:00 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:20 a.m.

CHAIR BAISA: ... (gavel). .. The meeting of the Planning Committee will come back to
order. We were accepting public testimony. Our next testifier will be Bill Frampton, and
Mr. Frampton will be followed by Doug MacCluer. Mr. MacCluer was the last person to,
to sign up to testify before the meeting, during the meeting or before the meeting. If
anyone else wants to, would you please come forward and sign up with the Secretary.
Good morning, Mr. Frampton.
MR. FRAMPTON: Good morning. My name is Bill Frampton. And I'm here as a co-partner of
Frampton and Ward, LLC, and here to testify on the update of the General Plan. I
normally am here presenting projects as a consultant or developer but I'll be honest to just
let you know first off that I'm very distressed and concerned when I'm talking about this
matter. After the last December GPAC meeting, I felt it was very important--I talked this
over with my partner--that we become more involved. We've attended every single
GP AC meeting since it started and even back before then.
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We all know the importance of getting this plan out. It is critical that we get this plan
out. And I think, I'd just like to share a little bit of background information that might be
of interest to you folks and, and then identify two concerns that we have. We all know in
1991 that's the date of our existing General Plan. That's quite a while ago to be using a
plan to guide us today. In 2002, the review of Bill 84 begun. That was a lengthy process
but in 2004 it was finally adopted. When it was adopted there were a lot of concerns by
developers, a lot of people that, wow, this update is going to take a long time. But back
then it was two years, that wasn't unrealistic, to wait two years, three years that wasn't
that bad because of the importance, the magnitude of this plan.
Bill 84 was adopted with several goals of, one, was of timeliness, two, was of
accountability, and I think the third is the hope of transparency. Timeliness. It's 2008,
okay; the bill was adopted in 2004. We had over 30 GPAC meetings. That's just
incomprehensible to me to not have a draft Island Plan out at this point based on that.
Accountability. They've come to the, the Planning Department has come to this
Committee numerous times over the past several years to give updates. We've been
assured on countless occasions we're on track; we're on target. Then eventually starting
in 2006 - 2007 we started hearing, well, we're a little bit behind. We've got some delays.
In the last few months we're heard it's staffing. We've heard like Susan said it's a flood or
I just can't say that it was adopted in 2004 and how we've gotten to this point is just very
disturbing.
The, the length that the GPAC was committed to one year in January of 2006. We
showed up at the Maui Arts and Cultural Center and they were assured this is a one year
process. They're going on their third year. But I think right now if we could focus on the
most significant concern looking forward, is where is the draft Maui Island Plan. That is
the critical component of this plan and where is that plan? We've been, heard that back in
the summer it was being reviewed by the Department Heads behind closed doors. It was
an adequate enough form to be reviewed by the Department Heads, why isn't it an
adequate enough form for the GP AC members, the public, and yourselves? If we talk
about transparency, my envision of transparency is if you have this draft plan, put it in
front of us on a round table and all of us review it together and come up with comments
together. It's a much more efficient way to go at least in, in our thoughts.
And I guess related to timeliness, another concern that we have relates to the money that's
been spent to date. There was a tremendous amount of time and energy and money spent
on reports, technical studies to get ready for this plan. Understandable. However, what's
the date of those plans? And by the time when you look at this new timeline that's been
handed out which is the fifth one that we have on file, I'm not sure why this one's more
believable than the last five but this is concerning. It's got 2010. What will the status of
those reports be and those technical studies be in 201 O? Will it cost money to update
those plans? We're not sure. I know if a developer were to use an EIS that had dated
reports and studies, that's a big issue. You got to make sure those things are update. It's
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just standard. I don't know what the date of, the exact dates of these plans are but it's
very concermng.
And again I know everyone now realizes the urgency. I'm just really concerned about the
patterns that we've seen to date. It's, it's just to me, it's hard to understand how it's 2008
and this GP AC is still waiting for that draft Island Plan that's been out there now for at
least six months that we're aware of. And that's there's concerns within the Department
of should it say this or should it say that. Bring it out to the public. Let's all decide what
it should say together. I think that's a fair way to go and I'll, I'll end with that.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much, Mr. Frampton. The Chair has a question.
MR. FRAMPTON: Yeah.
CHAIR BAlSA: I would have liked to ask this question to Mr. Mayer. Unfortunately we ran,
we ran out of time. But I'm really interested in hearing what you think might be some
viable solutions for improvement to the process.
MR. FRAMPTON: Yeah. I'd, I'd like to think I have the crystal ball. It's easy to look
backwards of course. But I do note what's very interesting is across the country when
general plans and reports of this kind of magnitude are taking place, reports are not
prepared internally. The consultants work and do these plans, the outside consultants do
most of the bulk of the work and it's not being done in-house. I'm not sure, what, if that's
the case here. I'm concerned. I've heard different things of how much work is done
within the Department or not. That was one concern. I don't know if that's something
you bring in a consultant now. They have a consultant. An extremely qualified
consultant, Chris Hart. I hope he's very intimately involved from this point forward as I
mentioned at the last GP AC meeting.
But as far as an idea, I, I can't stress enough the idea of take, they have a General Plan, an
Island Plan right now. They have a draft Island Maui Plan that they held at the last
meeting. It was held under the, the, the, their hand. It wasn't opened up or shared with
anybody but it was there. I saw it. Why can't that be handed out to the public? I know
it's in draft form but they keep talking about this, this timeline that the clock might start.
The six-month clock may start. That's, that's a good thing. I would hope we want the
clock to start. If you need an extension after the clock starts, I'm sure if they came back
and asked for an extension once it starts that's a good thing. But they're talking about
extensions and we haven't even started the six-month review.
This idea of timeliness, again, it keeps coming back to time, when the Council adopted
Bill 84 you had timelines in there. These six-month timelines, the one-year timeline for
yourself. Those were great because the Council knew the importance of time. I wish
there was a timeline for the Department. I don't see it in Bill 84 but this, this timeline
won't start until that plan gets into the GP AC members' hands. Get that plan into their
hands is all I can keep saying. Draft or not draft. Stamp draft on it. That's okay. A draft
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is a draft but let's start and you'll be stunned at how many wonderful members are on that
GPAC. They're not 25 planners, which I think it's a good thing. They're 25 members of
our community that bring a tremendous, vast experience to the table. If they were to have
a crack at that plan, I think it would be a fascinating way to go and I think that's why you
have 25 members doing this. That's why it would be a great process. Let those members
have that draft plan and work together with the Planning Department, work together with
their consultants, and the public and, and let's start the process.
I just see another timeline that was handed out today that I just took a look at and it's the
fifth timeline that I have in my files. It's very easy to keep extending, like find another
reason to extend. We've got to turn that plan into that GPAC and let 'em go at it. They've
been waiting and it's their third year.
CHAIR BAlSA: To summarize, to summarize what I hear, you really feel that we need to get
the review of the Island Plan going in the interest of time?
MR. FRAMPTON: Absolutely ... and morale, respect. They've put 30 meetings, over 30
meetings for these people that signed up for six months, at the most a year. That's
dragging them through, they put 'em through tons of training classes to become, I don't
know, planners. We don't want 25 planners. We got our staff. We got the Department.
We want 25 citizens going at it with their thoughts and backgrounds. Let 'em start.
They're ready. And again I just, you're right. Out of timeliness I really hope that if they
say they're going to get them the plan in February, I would think it can be done earlier but
let's stick with February. If that's what they're saying, I hope that they stick with it this
time.
CHAIR BAlSA: Members, any more questions for the testifier? If not, then Chair has one more
question before I let you go. The information that you have received from the Planning
Department and from the consultant so far, are you, are you happy with the quality of it?
MR. FRAMPTON: What information? It's been, my concern is that the lack of transparency,
the, the amount of work that's done behind closed doors and not out in the public. But
the work that's been produced so far there's a draft Policy Plan that was released. That
was great. It took forever for the poor GP AC to wait to get it. Once they got it, they
went at it and they produced a fine plan. Their version of that plan is very interesting and
it shows their commitment. It shows their experience, their knowledge. They can do the
job, they're just not being allowed to do so right now. And it's, so that draft plan that
they've released was great. The other work I don't know. We've seen some of their
studies. We've got a lot of questions and concerns about the studies but I don't know the
date of those, if they're going to be any valid anymore.
CHAIR BAlSA: Well, thank you very ...
MR. FRAMPTON: It just starts to get more and more concerning.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. I'll save more, more questions along that line for the Department
presentation. Members, all done? If not, thank you very much for your -MR. FRAMPTON: And, and ...
CHAIR BAISA: --dedication.
MR. FRAMPTON: Thank you again. I appreciate having the opportunity and everybody else to
share. And I'm, I'm, these meetings are real important and I'm anxious to hear the
Department's update as well. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier, and again he is our last testifier that
has signed up to testify today is Doug MacCluer. Last chance if you want to testify, run
up here and fill out a form. Good morning, Mr. MacCluer.
MR. MACCLUER: Good morning, Chair, and Members of this Committee. I'm Doug
MacCluer. I'm a member of GP AC. I thought Susan did a great job and, and Dick
expressing our frustration. And we are frustrated. We have gone to 30 meetings. And
the information that you questioned, Chair, we have stuff that I have on a couch that is
probably that deep. And we read it, and we read it, and we read it, and we haven't made
near the progress that I think that we should have. This has gone on far too long. And in
my opinion as a manager and having run some businesses over the years, this is a
management problem. This is not a process problem. It's a management problem.
When, when you have a problem, you need to manage it. You need to do, as Susan said
you need to define what the problem is and solve it. This has gone on and on and on.
I sympathize with the developers. The developer develops or plans and spends a lot of
money with plans for development and it goes on and on and on. He's paying money for
the interest on the plans. And if we're going to tell him no, then that money is poho. On
the other hand, we have developers that are trying to circumvent the process taking prime
ag land, important lands that we should be feeding our community from and they want to
develop it or they sell it to developers. The process is taking too long and we have some
great members on GP AC. There is a diversity in that group that I have never seen work
together so well but they're frustrated. We are all frustrated. And I just think that this is a
management problem. The Planning Department needs to get focused. The Council and
the Administration needs to put focus on the Planning Department and tell 'em get off the
pot because that's in my opinion the problem. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. MacCluer. Questions for the testifier? If not, I want to tell
you that yours are on the couch, mine fill a laundry basket in the back of my car. So, I'm
very familiar with the paper you're talking about. Are there any other members of the
audience who would like to testify? If you'd like to come up, we can fill the paperwork
up later. If not, without any objections, I'd like to close public testimony for today.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much.

ITEM NO. 2

GENERAL PLAN UPDATE; SOCIO-ECONOMIC FORECAST

(C.C.

Nos. 07-54 & 06-297)

CHAIR BAISA: And now, we're going to ask the Planning Department if they would please
make their presentation. We would certainly, we're very interested in hearing what you
have to say. I'd like to turn it over to John Summers. Unfortunately, you're, you're here
alone, John.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you, Madam Chair, and Members of the Committee and the public. I'd
like to thank all of you for, for coming this morning. And I'd also like to take the
opportunity to thank the General Plan Advisory Committee, all of the Committees in fact.
The Maui General Plan Advisory Committee has been meeting for, since January of2006
and we've had a number of meetings. Some of 'em have been very difficult meetings and
throughout this entire period we've maintained an attendance of 22 to 25 members per
meeting, which I think is extraordinary. And it's a sense of their commitment to the
project. And they've done an excellent job. We've got a great group with a tremendous
amount of experience. And so I do want to take this opportunity to thank the members of
that Committee, as well as our Committees on Molokai and Lanai.
All of the Members should have a Gantt chart, a schedule. I'd like to, to focus this
morning's discussion on the schedule to provide the Members with an update of the
project. As the Members know with the adoption of 2.80B better known as Bill 84 now
Bill 53, a new process was set up to prepare an update of the County's General Plan. And
the General Plan as redefined in 2.80B consists of four major components. So, when we
talk about the General Plan we're not talking about one super document, we're talking
about I believe it's 14 documents that comprise the General Plan.
And the first of those documents is the Countywide Policy Plan. And the Department
worked closely with the General Plan Advisory Committees to prepare that document. It
provides an overarching set of policies for the County as a whole. That plan is in the
process. We have one meeting left with Molokai this week and the plan will be
transmitted to the County Council for their review at the end of next week. Once that
happens, the Council has one year to complete their review of that document. So, we're
looking at, if the entire year is used, January of 2009 for the completion of the
Countywide Policy Plan.
The second major component of the General Plan is the Maui Island Plan. And the Maui
Island Plan we're at a stage where we're at a crossroads on that document wrapping up the
preparation of that document going through some final administrative review before it's
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released to the General Plan Advisory Committee. I'll talk a little bit more about the
Maui Island Plan in a moment. And then we have the nine Community Plans. And the
Department is moving forward with some of those initial plans as we speak.
So, the significant majority of our work on the update of the General Plan to date has
been the Countywide Policy Plan and the Maui Island Plan. And again the Countywide
Policy Plan, the heavy lifting on that project has been completed and now we're looking
forward to wrapping that document up with the Council in 2008. The Maui Island Plan
will be entering a new stage of the project. I mean for the Department the heavy lifting
on the Maui Island Plan is concluding with the preparation of the document and will go
into this new phase with the General Plan Advisory Committee.
Again, if you look at the Gantt chart, and I'll get into the details of that in a minute, that
review by the GP AC, the document would be delivered to the GPAC in February and
pursuant to the provisions of 2. 80B the GP AC has six months to complete their review of
that document. So, if the Members could, could take their Gantt chart I'll walk through
that briefly. The top row in that chart on the left hand side if you look at that column it
says the, the work of the Planning Department and the consultant team. You'll see that
the Maui Island Plan is being wrapped up by the Department and that we're beginning the
early technical studies on the Molokai and Lanai Community Plan updates.
The Advisory Committee will be ramping up in a big way in February and continuing for
six months on the review of the Maui Island Plan, and that's represented in the middle of
the chart you'll see the notation with GP AC. When the GP AC completes their review of
that document it will be transmitted to the Planning Commissions. The Department has
30 days to comprise the comments from the GPAC and forward those comments to the
Planning Commission. And the Planning Commission has six months from the date of
their public hearing to complete their work. Once the work of the Planning Commission
is completed, the Council will have one year to review that document.
And at that point the Department will be moving more into the Community Plan updates.
The Department has completed a number of technical studies; all of the technical studies
that were required by Bill 84. And I'd like to note that, Bill 84, 2.80B as drafted, is very,
very ambitious. It really represents a complete overhaul of the County's planning system
and there are a number of elements that are required, very important elements in terms of
ensuring that the planning documents that are prepared are well informed. Those studies
have been completed in 2006 and 2007. So the Department doesn't believe that with the
schedules that we've identified we're going to have major problems in terms of the data
going stale on us. I don't think that's going to be an issue. The State Department of
Business Economic Development and Tourism is in the process of updating their
projections to 2035 and there are not big differences in the numbers between that update
and the previous update. And the Department is looking at those forecast and does have
some budget to update our socio-economic forecast.
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Again I think, you know, obviously there were some concerns expressed this morning.
The Department is, is well aware of, of the concerns and we've met, you know, with
members individually, as well as with the group in its totality, and we have lively
conversations about the project. So, we're aware of the concerns. We share the concerns.
I think we're all in the same boat in terms of wanting to see this move forward
expeditiously. So that being said like I indicated earlier we're at a crossroads on the
project where we'll now be actually going into the Maui Island Plan update. And I think
we'll be a lot more efficient, you know, as a group and that being the GP AC and the
Department as compared to the Countywide Policy Plan because we've had a lot of
practice in our meetings. And it was, you know, when the Countywide Policy Plan was
reviewed by the GP AC, we got more and more efficient as a group as the process
continued. So, I expect we'll carry that momentum forward with the review of the Maui
Island Plan.
The other important thing is we won't be staffing the three GPAC's. And that, you know,
that's extremely time consuming and hard on the staff when we split the staff to, to staff
those three GP AC's. So, we'll be able to concentrate our energy on the Maui GP AC
during that review process. Thank you very much. Are there any questions?
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you. Thank you very much, John. Members, questions for the, for the
Department? Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yes. John, thank you and I think we, we share your frustration. But
I guess what I want to get to is that if, and I, I think one of the members or one of the
testifiers brought this up, if we were to look at the, I guess, the timeline that we have in
front of us now and if we were to compare that to--and, and I'm just trying to find it in
our documentation but we don't have it--if we were to compare that to what the initial
timeline was, how far are we behind? You know, like if, if I were to superimpose this
document on an original document of what the projections were, where do we really
stand right now? What's, what's the lag time?
MR. SUMMERS: I would have to go back and look at those original Gantt charts but I know
we're at least a year behind.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. 'Cause that's really important for me to know at least just to
visually see where we are. I would appreciate seeing at some time, Madam Chair, if we
could have that submitted to us so that we can kind of have a sense of also with the
various timelines if you did prepare something similar to that at the initiation just to kind
of see where we are on this spectrum.
MR. SUMMERS: Right. If, if I may?
CHAIR BAlSA: Surely.
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MR. SUMMERS: The, there are couple of issues you have to be a little careful about with that.
The first is the, the scope of the project changed somewhat with the amendments to Bill
84 and, and that affected, affects how the project proceeds. And so that has to be kept in
mind. We went to four clearly identified components of the General Plan, the
Countywide Policy Plan, and the Maui Island Plan. And I do know that we've
consistently said that these updates typically take two and a half years just as, as, as a
reference point. I think the two major components that have caused, been the biggest
challenges for us, obviously, the, the staffing situation has been very difficult. We lost
some critical staff at the most unopportune [sic] times, and, and that bogged things down
a bit. And then we've had a couple of illnesses at very inappropriate times and that
affected our schedule as well. So, on the staffing side that's been a challenge from the
start.
And I think the second major issue that's not too surpnsmg is working with a new
ordinance. Now, Bill 84 I think has revolutionized the County's planning system and I
think all in all it's a very solid piece of work. But when you're dealing with an ordinance
of that complexity right out the shoot you're going to have some surprises and we've had
a few. And it's a very ambitious program. So, you know, I think that's good. I think
setting our standards high is important as a community and we've been able to rebuild the
County's planning databases, which I think are extremely important. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. Thank you. And Staff just handed me a copy which I think,
you know, if the Members don't have it this is kind of what you're saying about being
behind a year. When I'm looking at it, we may be farther behind than a year just by
looking at this comparison. So, what I'm not going to do is I'm not going to beat anybody
up Of, you know, say, oh, woe is me and try and rehash what's happened in the past.
Where I'd like to go just as one member is be proactive and say what can this Committee
do specifically if you were to identify ways in which we could assist you in the staffing
or, you know, I mean obviously Administration has to make budget amendments. If we
have resources that could be put to use to accelerate or to ramp up to actually compress
the time period so that it's not, you know, out over this long page instead of it being on a
legal sized piece of paper. I'd prefer to see on an 8Yz x 11 piece of paper and preferably
... (end of tape, start 2B) . .. not running the long way, running the short way so that we
could really move things into what I call acceleration mode. What can we do to help
make that a reality? 'Cause I sense you're going to lose some members of your GP AC if
we don't do something and I don't want to see that institutional knowledge go.
MR. SUMMERS: Right. I, I think there are some important things that can be done. In the
short run, I believe as a, as a team, and I'm talking about the Department and the GP AC, I
think we're through the worst of it. Once the plan is delivered in February, the six-month
review process kicks in. So I think in the short run, you know, the, the process is going
to take care of itself as the GP AC begins their review similar to the Countywide Policy
Plan. In the long run 'cause these things are going to take some time and they're
structural in nature, Bill 84 definitely deserves a second look. And as I indicated it's a
solid piece of work and I thank the Council that wrestled with it, and the staff and the
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Department at the time who wrestled with it did a great job. And I would tip my hat to
them for the effort that they put into it. But there are some issues in that ordinance that
need to be addressed going forward. And so that would definitely be one area that we'd
need help.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So, so, John, could you make specific suggestions about problematic
areas in Bill 84 so we don't have a repeat performance? If, if you could do that? Would
you be able to do that?
MR. SUMMERS: Yeah. That, that would be easy enough.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. SUMMERS: And the second issue which is a much broader issue that affects every
department in this County and departments across the State are the procurement, not the
procurement, well, procurement is part of it but the Personnel system is, is a serious
challenge in terms of the procedures that departments have to use to fill vacant positions.
It's something that's very complex and I know that our staff within the County are
working very, very hard trying to move things along. But the, the process by which we
go through in terms of hiring is so complex and such a challenge that we've lost a number
of very qualified applicants because of the time it takes to conduct the interview process.
And just the whole procedural review process it's, it's, it's really tied things into a knot.
So, I would take a hard look at that. I think it, you know, I think it's something that is
going to require close cooperation with the State. And they have their own rules that
need to be adjusted but this, this really needs to be looked at.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I, I know that we've in other Departments, and, and I believe
Mr. Foley when he was Planning Director, had said that they were trying to utilize I guess
an emergency or urgent hire kind of policy. Were, were you able to or are you able to
recommend? Because obviously from what the GPAC members are saying and even the
general public and just the whole economic viability of what we're trying to do, I would
say it is urgent and it is an emergency. Can we, can we send any kind of communication
to stress to Personnel that this is a top priority and we need to implement urgent hire
practices or whatever we can do to accelerate hiring?
MR. SUMMERS: Right. The emergency, the provisions for emergency hires has been very
valuable. In fact, our division has a couple of staff who, who have been hired using that
mechanism. It's not the, it, it puts us at a competitive disadvantage by, by the nature of
those positions but we've gotten a couple of very qualified consultants, our staff using
that tool. I think Personnel is, is, is doing their best and working very hard but they have
a set of rules and requirements that, that they have to abide by. And, you know, that's the
system that's, that's been set up. And, you know, systems can be changed and that would
be something that I think the County needs to take a real hard look at, not only for the
Planning Department, but probably for every department in this County.
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I, I think it was suggested or at least, you know, talked about by one
of the testifiers to look also at if we don't have the ability to hire through, you know, all
of these I guess Personnel processes, if we don't have the ability to hire, can we contract
out? So that you can beef up with outside personnel that are not part of the County hiring
system. Can, is that another possibility that we could look at?
MR. SUMMERS: That's an excellent possibility and we, we've been using that approach. And
so we do have a consultant team that's been helping us with the project and with some of
the technical studies. The Department's also been doing some of the work in-house as
well as the majority of the work before the three GP AC's in terms of staff setup and
everything. So, that is an important tool. It's a tool that's used in almost every General
Plan update across the country and so we've used it as well. And the Council I think has
been very supportive of our request as a Department in that arena.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. SUMMERS: I'd like to thank you for that.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: But irrespective of that, even that utilization of that tool has not
really, by the testimony, has not helped. So, do you need additional help?
MR. SUMMERS: On any, any special planning project whether it's General Plan update or an
ordinance update, any technical study, you have to have staff involved in the project.
And so, yeah, the, the big problem for our Department has been the lack of staff. You
know, you need to review consultant work; you need to handle the whole administrative
part of that. There's a lot of work that goes into it and if you don't have enough bodies,
things slow down. And Bill 84 is very ambitious and, and I think that's good. We raised
the bar and we're going to get there. We've made a lot of progress as a, I think as a
Department, as a Division, as a County in terms of our planning capabilities. But you,
you have to have the infrastructure in place.
And I guess if, if there's maybe one lesson learned, you don't kick something like this off
until you've got the infrastructure in place because as you're trying to grow, grow the
Division, we started with I think it was four employees after the last Administrator left
and our Planning Supervisor, you know as you're trying to grow, grow the Division in
terms of staffing, in terms of equipment, office space, and everything else, at the same
time we're trying to complete the work and you're working within the system that's, you
know, it's, it's a challenge. So, I think having the infrastructure in place, you know, is
important at, at the get go particularly if you're working in an organization that it takes
longer to do things like hire people.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I'm even looking at if you look at temporary hire or
some, some other mechanism where you perhaps have a little bit more flexibility. What
we're doing is because you're in the Department we cannot, you know, by Charter or any
other means tell you how to do your job. But what I'm trying to as one of the Members
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of this Committee say what we can do to address both the concerns of your Department,
as well as the criticism from GP AC members, but maintain the integrity of the process so
that we, we don't lose valuable institutional knowledge through attrition of the members
just simply because some of them may move off island, some of them may get other jobs
that prevent them from participating in the process, some may die. So, I mean I'm
looking at the reality and looking at that time is really of the essence. So, I look to you
for guidance as to what is it that we can do to assist you to also assist the members of the
GP AC to accelerate the process. I don't, if we can avoid taking six months, you know,
by meeting or they, you know, through GP AC can meet more frequently, well, then let's
compress the time. Because if we've got to make up for the one year and try to move it
forward I'm all for that but I just need to know from you. So, think about it. Make your
recommendations because I will do whatever I can as one Member of this Committee to
assist you. Thank you.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Mr. Summers. I
know you're on the hot seat here and you seem to be by yourself. So, I guess that's why
they pay you the big bucks but proverbial saying. You know, myself and Member
Johnson, we were here with the birth of Bill 84 so we know all about the growing pains
and the frustration that people had leading up to Bill 84 passing. And for the record, I
was one member who voted no initially in Committee. And it was because I felt it was
being rushed. My, my major concern at that time was with the issue of urban growth
boundaries. And as one old timer once told me, I know sometimes government officials
get caught up with getting a result, especially if it's before an election, but sometimes
when you have a legislative issue which is as sensitive and significant as this you need to
take the time.
And I voted no because I felt, hey, let's take a little bit more time, but there was concerns
from some members and some members of the public saying that, well, we've already
met 20-plus times on this so let's pass it and even if there's problems, what the heck, we'll
deal with it along the road. Well, here we are. These are the consequences from rushing
legislation. So, I just want to make that commentary to start off first. But we got the
problem now and we got to deal with it. And, you know, I'm, I'm feeling a sense of
frustration like a lot of other people. It's, I know you've been here several times
requesting extensions and I know the time parameters established in Bill 84 as, as you
mentioned is ambitious but it's there and we've got to deal with it.
So, my first question to you is, one of the testifiers mentioned about the Maui Island
Draft Plan and it's been alleged that you guys have the plan but you have not shared it
with the public and I believe in due process. So, we've heard from that person and this
allegation. Can you comment on that? And I just want to hear both sides of the story on
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that and why. Is this true? Was this document being discussed behind closed doors, and
so forth, and you know, if that's true can you tell us why?
MR. SUMMERS: Well, we, we have had a draft document since October and I think
unfortunately at that particular critical point in the process, and I apologize to the GP AC
and everybody else for getting sick during a very valuable period, but we did have a
document delivered in October. And it was a good document, a very comprehensive
document, very thoughtful in its, in its approach. But there, within, within the, within
the, the Division there was some difference in terms of philosophy in terms of the scope
of the document and so we've had to work our way through that. And I think we've made
a lot of progress. I'm very confident that the document as it's been worked on is going to
be something that we can all be proud of. It's going to be a very solid piece of work.
But that's, that's the, that's the major thing. You have a situation where you've got, you
know, some new staff. We had an election so you have a new director and new staff that,
that come in and a slightly different approach and that's something that's very common in
this business. Not unique to this project at all. So we've worked through that and I think
we're going to have a bang up product.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, again, to respond to my question IS It true you guys
withheld that document from the GP AC members to look at? So, currently none of the
members have seen this draft at this time?
MR. SUMMERS: Well, typically with any product whether it's an ordinance, a zoning
ordinance or a general plan, any, any major product in my experience that comes from
the Administration you, you present your document, complete your document as an
Administration and then you release it. And under Bill 84, the Department clearly
specifies that the Department prepares its draft and then it provides the draft to the GP AC
for review. And so the Administration at this point is working to finalize that document.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, you feel this draft is not ready to be reviewed by the
GP AC at this point even in its I guess pre-draft stage?
MR. SUMMERS: I think at this point, well, in October, you know, I wasn't here during those
discussions in October and November, at this point we have a very solid document. It's
needs to be, we need the, the final review and then I think it would be appropriate for the
Department to release it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I guess maybe this is why ...
MR. SUMMERS: It's not, I mean, at this point I don't think that it's, would be advisable for us
to release a document that hasn't been, had its review completed by the Administration.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Can I ask why? I mean even if just for, I understand you do
want to keep an openness with the GP AC members and if a member or two would like to
at least see what's initially being proposed, why do you feel that it may be inappropriate?
MR. SUMMERS: Well, I think it's, obviously, it's a very important document and once the
document goes out it's the position of the Department and ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, this is a Department policy that you not show this pre-draft
to the GP AC members? 'Cause what I'm afraid of is if, if there seems to be a perceived
lack of openness between the Department and GP AC you may have members that just
throw their hands up in frustration and just quit. So, and I apologize for keep pressing
you on this because I think it's imperative because of the frustration on how long it's
taken. I think we need to, you know, there's a problem and as one testifier said, let's work
on solving the problem. And if this is a problem, let's, let's address it and, you know,
that's why I need to know.
MR. SUMMERS: I'll, I'll raise the issue with the Planning Director.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Madam Chair, I have a couple more questions but I'll
yield for now.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Molina. Unfortunately, I'd like to pursue that.
Mr. Summers, thank you very much for coming here today and, you know, sitting in the
hot seat and listening to a very difficult meeting but yet a very important meeting because
the task that we're talking about today is so important to our community. And I think
that's why there's so much passion about the subject. It's from the GPAC members who
have given so much time and care so much about moving things along and your
Department being so stressed and trying so hard to, you know, meet the demands and do
what needs to be done. But what is, what I'm feeling is there's a little sense of distrust
here. Well, maybe, maybe that's an understatement of the situation but I, I get frustration
and I get distrust.
And I think that, you know, I've, I've been present when members have asked for the
draft and I don't think there's been a very open answer to why, why not. And I think that
that's probably, you know, important and it needs to be cleared up. And just the idea that,
you know, we don't want to give it to you because it doesn't have a final stamp on it, I
think it's a discussion that needs to be held with the GPAC members or maybe even today
so that everybody can move ahead. You know we cannot, we're not going to come up
with a good product if we're going to operate in a, in an atmosphere of we're not sure that
you're telling us the truth. We're not sure you're telling us the whole story. 'Cause, you
know, the Department and the GP AC and all of us have to work together to come up with
a document for the good of the community.
And so I think, you know, that's an issue. We can't keep saying, well, it's not ready, and
you know, we don't normally do it. I think there has to be maybe a little better
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explanation about why the resistance if you don't mind. Maybe if Planning Director
Hunt can take over now that he's here in the middle hot seat. Thank you for coming
back. We're discussing, Director Hunt, I'm sorry we might want to catch you up to date,
the non-release of the Maui Island, the draft Maui Island Plan. And there were a lot of
testimony about how important that is and how members of the GP AC feel that they
would like to take a look at it mostly in the interest of time. Because they feel if they had
it now and they could look at the draft, maybe it would save time when they get the final
product that you're going to give them. Please.
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Chair. My apologies for not being here for the full meeting.
CHAIR BAlSA: No apologies necessary. We know you have a higher authority.
MR. HUNT: My clone hasn't been approved yet.
CHAIR BAlSA: Yeah. Yeah.
MR. HUNT: I'd like to say, let me back up and just make a little statement in regards to some
things that were said earlier, and I, I share the frustration of the GP AC members. At, at
the same time there has been some good news and I don't think that should be drowned
out. The, the Countywide Policy Plan has been reviewed by all three of the GP AC' s, all
three of the Planning Commissions except for one more day for Molokai, and it, it will
soon be sent to the County Council. While, while there was a statement that the Planning
Department has not met one deadline, deadlines sometimes are difficult to meet and the
GPAC didn't meet their one deadline, but we didn't cast dispersions on them. We, we
tried to work with them and even supported their resolution for an extension.
During, during the, the time that we haven't passed out the, the Maui Island Plan, there's
been an opportunity to form investigative committees and get some positive work done
on doing a better review process for the Maui Island Plan based on the lessons that were
learned during the Countywide Plan. My, my impression of the Maui Island Plan was
that, again, it was presented as a draft to the Department and our Staff Planner who was
dealing with that project was out sick when it was delivered to the Department. So we
formed a team, a subcommittee so to speak, and we reviewed the document and we felt
that it wasn't really what we wanted. We, we had the option to hand it to the GPAC at
that time with the idea that once we hand it to them the clock starts ticking and then they
would be spending valuable time going through substance, not substance change but
formatting and, and reorganization of the plan that we could do outside of the clock
ticking. We felt that it was better to do that reorganization and reformatting and then
hand them the plan and then the clock starts ticking.
And there were some, some things that happened outside of our control. We've had staff
members, last year we had a staff member move back to the mainland 'cause his wife got
critically ill. This year we had a staff member who had surgery. There was the, the
storm that delayed the Mayor's review of the product. And I'm not, I'm not trying to
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make up excuses. I'm trying to give explanations that there are things that, that are
outside of our control. The, the plan is just about, the Maui Island Plan is just about
finished for a review by the Mayor and we anticipate getting it to the GPAC in February.
Again, things could happen.
Part of our problem I think has been, we've been setting deadlines and people have been
interpreting those as firm deadlines. In our mind it's, it's a goal rather than a deadline.
They're self-imposed deadlines in order to help us coordinate schedules in order to give
us a goal to meet. And we all work better under deadlines. Then when we don't meet
that deadline everyone is disappointed. So, in the, and perhaps we shouldn't have set a
deadline. Perhaps we just should have said we'll get you the plan when we get you the
plan. And, but, you know, so that's, that's not a good approach either. There's not an
easy solution. But again, I think the, the good side of, of, there's, there's some positive
news and that's that the Countywide Policy Plan will be to the Council in the very near
future and the Maui Island Plan will be to the GP AC, Maui GP AC in the very near future.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. Members, questions? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. Yes, my initial question was one
that Member Johnson raised as, as far as the original projection of schedule and now the
January 8th projection. Looking at the November 21, 2006 projection seems like the
process has extended significantly from the original projections, and some of that has
been explained by Mr. Summers to Member Johnson. What I want to ask about the
newest of the projection schedule which was handed to us today is the black arrows
indicate that these processes may extend beyond, instead of saying deadline, the goal of
what is in the color coded areas?
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So that, does that give you some flexibility or does
that do in a negative way allow you to extend the process further than we should?
MR. SUMMERS: No, these are ongoing processes. I don't think it's negative or should be
interpreted as being negative in any way just by the nature of the tasks that are on the
chart.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I wanted to ask some questions that were asked by Member
Johnson but kind of adding to her, her questions. Does the Planning Department have
regular updates with County Administration on the process as it's proceeding with the
Mayor's office?
MR. HUNT: We, we have updates with her.

- 34 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 8, 2008

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And during those update meetings, are problematic
areas discussed, discussed and are potential remedies discussed that can be initiated by
the Mayor's office?
MR. HUNT: Yes. We've talked about scheduling. We've talked about staffing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And now that you bring up staffing that leads into
my next question because we've heard a lot about the staff shortage and some for good
reasons as you indicated, Director Hunt. But specifically, I'm assuming Long Range
Division is overseeing this process, is that correct?
MR. HUNT: It's under the Long Range Division -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. HUNT: --as Director I'm responsible for ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. What are the exact shortage as far as
vacancies of staff? Meaning there are those positions but there is no warm bodies.
Where do we stand in Long Range on that?
MR. SUMMERS: We're, we're short two Senior Planner positions and a GIS Technician.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I think you explained the shortages or are these
some vacancies just that, just haven't been filled through the process? I know you said
some staff member left because the wife was sick and so forth but are there vacancies
where they just haven't been filled?
MR. SUMMERS: These are vacancies where staff members have left or a new position is
created and we're trying to get the position filled.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. So that would, would be my next question.
Do you have enough positions or is there a need for expansion positions other than the
ones you need to fill in order to help this process along?
MR. SUMMERS: In order to help the process along we have to fill these vacant positions.
That's, that's an absolute given. In terms of expansion positions, we've, we're requested
an expansion position. I think the County needs to ensure that there is an investment in
the implementation of the documents when they're completed, and that has been
something I think an area where improvement can be made. So we want to make sure
we're adequately staffed to implement.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And I, I did hear you, Mr. Summers, respond to
Member Johnson's inquiry about filling the positions and the challenges of going through
the recruitment process through DPS. And we have discussed that before with other
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departments so I think Member Johnson has requested and I think Chair Baisa has also
requested information about, you know, how we can expedite filling the positions.
Especially in your case where it seems like the staff shortage has really hampered the
process, not only for the Department, but for GP AC. So thank you for your responses on
these questions. Mahalo, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Go ahead, Mr. Director.
MR. HUNT: Member Medeiros, I think you, you hit on a really critical issue, not just for the
Planning Department, but for the County in general and that's staff shortages, and it's, it's,
it's hurting everybody across the board. Having said that, these schedules if we could get
staffing, you know, optimistically speaking if we fill those positions, these schedules will
change in a, in an approved manner.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. And I think Member Johnson brought up some very
good options as far as temporary hires or, you know, emergency hires, anything that we
could do to assist your Department and GP AC with moving the process along more
expeditiously. So I think this Committee will be under the leadership of Chairwoman
Baisa will certainly be looking at those options. Thank you.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. A couple questions the Chair has. One of the
testifiers brought up the issue of the finances of the General Plan Advisory Committee
and the whole process and was suggesting that maybe there is a need for more money.
And I understand that of course Budget is coming up and I'm sure that there will be a
substantial request and there should be in the Budget request. But right now is there a
need for additional money to be found right now?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you. I think there are two areas that are very important. One is public
outreach and, an investment in informing the public of, of what is happening with the
project and an investment in gathering input from the public. And those are two areas
that I think an investment would absolutely be worthwhile. A second issue that's been
discussed is process facilitation. We started the process with some facilitation help.
Decided to operate the Committee in a more structured formal way. There has been
discussion recently among the Committee about perhaps the value of having strong
process facilitation brought into the project and that would require some additional
funding.
CHAIR BAlSA: Do you have any idea of what that might be and would a request be
forthcoming? You know, we're here today trying to find solutions and I think until we
know what we need to do we not going be able to do anything. So, if there is a need, I'd
like to receive it writing so that I can go to bat for you with the folks that control the
purse and I'm one of 'em but I'm not the boss. . .. (end of tape, start 3A) . ..
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you. In terms of the process facilitation, I know that the Executive
Committee that's looking at making sure that the process for the Maui Island Plan review
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is efficient, we'd like to, as a Department, continue our dialogue with the Committee in
the area of process facilitation. And it, it, through the budgeting process we are looking
at some additional monies and we can further explore the specific amount in terms of
securing that kind of help for the project.
CHAIR BAISA: I would not be adverse, and I know my Committee Members are not either to
discussing a possible budget amendment. If. .. it's really critical to us moving this process
along because you know a lot of it seems to be tied to money. And if money is involved,
then we need to know how much and then we can sit here and talk about it and see what
we might be able to come up with. I can't make any promises, but I was taught by a very
wise woman, if you don't ask, you don't get.
MR. HUNT: I think the critical shortage on money is, well, it's not a shortage of money, the
critical shortage is staffing and we have those positions budgeted. So I don't think we
need additional monies for, for staffing beyond what we're putting in, in, in next year's
Budget. So that will come before the Budget Committee eventually.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. So you don't feel there's any need right now to deal with money for
public outreach or any of the issues that we've heard talked about?
MR. HUNT: No. I didn't mean to say that John's comments earlier that I didn't support those.
I, I was just saying in terms of staffing I don't see what more we can do at this point.
CHAIR BAISA: I wasn't thinking of staffing but is it possible that maybe you could out source
that and hire like a public relations firm to help take care of that?
MR. HUNT: To help take care of the staffing or ...
CHAIR BAISA: No. The, the public outreach or the gathering of input or even, you know,
hiring somebody to do the facilitating.
MR. HUNT: That is a possibility. Yeah, we can explore that.
CHAIR BAISA: Yeah. I'm, I'm trying to help.
MR. HUNT: I understand.
CHAIR BAISA: And I know that everyone here today is trying to help. You know, we all have
heard what the issues are. We've heard what the problems are. We've heard what the
frustrations are. But I'm a solution-oriented person. I want us to leave here today with
something to do to make it better and so that's what I'm trying to get out. And I'm very,
very open to hear what the Department has to say and what the Members have to say so
that maybe we can help. You know, we are limited in terms of what we can tell you what
to do and we know we can't do that but we can try to help you. Member Johnson, you
have something you want to say?
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VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: I think that one of the things we may be able to do and this would
require Chair Baisa or yourselves perhaps meeting with the Chair of the Council because
I know that sometimes for studies or other technical things we do have some money in
Council Services Budget. I don't know how much is left but if any of that might be made
available just possibly to assist with some of the technical aspects. Because see the
General Plan is, is going to be our document, too, so we're stakeholders in the same way
that the GP AC is. Because if it facilitates getting that information to us more
expeditiously, then I think whatever resources we have that could be put to some
discretionary use I'm sure we could at least ask.
And that's what I, I share Chair Baisa's philosophy that it's frustrating for all of us when
you see something, you see whether it's a person or a process kind of limping along, you
want to help. It's just instinctive, and particularly I guess our nurturing kind of attitude.
Not that men aren't nurturing, but I think women are a little bit more cognizant of that
because when we see children in distress or we see anybody, we want to help and that's
just in our nature. So, from my perspective if we don't know what it is that we can do to
assist, then it's very difficult for us to move forward, but whatever you advise us I think
we're more than happy to be advocates. We want to be proactive instead of reactive. So,
I just look to you for guidance. Ask, I don't know if we'll be able to do everything that
you ask for, but we certainly will try, and as you know Budget amendments are made by
the Administration not by the Council. So, go up to the ninth floor, corner her nibs and
twist her arm a little bit, and see what it is that you can get also from the Mayor so that
she's able to ask us for assistance. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Member Johnson. And, you know, the reason why I think it's
importance is I under ... , I know we're going to, you know, be looking at a new Budget
request and I'm sure you worked very hard on that to make sure that you have what you
need in it. But there's this long lag, you know, this is January and new Budget won't go
into effect until June of 2008 so there's this time. And it seems very critical at this point
because we're kind of reaching this point where we need to respond, do something. And
I, I agree with you, I think that giving out the Maui Island Plan will provide a shot in the
arm so everybody get busy and, and focused again but we probably can make, you know,
a few changes. If we can get more, more resources or help you however we can.
You know, we're not here to, to frustrate the process. We're here to facilitate and to try
and help. We need this General Plan. I'm, I was going to ask a question, I'm almost
afraid to ask, but because I know you don't want to commit to any deadlines because, you
know, you're held to them all the time but I promise you I won't. When do you think all
things considered we might have a General Plan? Guess. I promise I won't, I won't write
it in stone.
MR. HUNT: Well, the, the Policy Plan should be delivered to you this month.
CHAIR BAISA: Yeah.
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MR. HUNT: And then you have a year to review it I believe.
CHAIR BAlSA: Okay.
MR. HUNT: And then the next step is the Maui Island Plan and then the Community Plans. So,
if you speak of the whole General Plan that -CHAIR BAlSA: The whole thing.
MR. HUNT: --there's a lot of documents on that. In a lot of ways the General Plan update if you
include the Community Plans it's kind of like painting the Golden Gate Bridge. As soon
as you're done with all the Community Plans you better start over.
CHAIR BAlSA: So, it looks to me like when I look at this spreadsheet that we're up to 2010 and
we still aren't talking about Community Plans for Maui. So, at least I don't see it on here,
I'm maybe not spending enough time to look at. But it's going to be beyond 2010 and I
know that that's a real frustrating situation, not only for the Council, but also for the
development community that is trying to forecast and plan their lives and their
investments in where we're going. So, I guess we all got to buckle up and, and make this
happen. And, you know, I certainly understand the challenges you've had. I've been, you
know, around it and I'm aware of what's going on but, you know, we got to find a way to
deal with the unexpected.
You know, I ran a very large organization and I dealt with staff shortages and I dealt with
illnesses and I dealt with mega money problems. 'Cause in non-profit you can't go to the
Budget Director and say can I have some more money - there's isn't any. But the job has
to get done. And so that's the challenge of management is how do I do this without a
staff or how do I do this with my planner sick or my, my accountant sick or whoever sick.
And so, you know, if you have issues and there's any way that Council can be of any
help, please feel free to contact me and I'll bring it to the Planning Committee. We'll try
to see what we can do because we're all in this together. We want a General Plan and we
all want it as soon as we can get it. And we also want to keep the General Plan Advisory
Committee fairly happy because, you know, they're providing an invaluable service as
volunteers to the community. I don't even want to try to put a price tag on the time that
has been and expertise that has been contributed by the volunteers. So I think that's really
important. Know you're not alone.
MR. HUNT: We appreciate the offers of support and offers of financial assistance and
nurturing. We'll take all the nurturing we can get. We hear the frustration. We, we
understand the problem. We're not ignoring it. We will try and deal with it. That's the
best I can say at this point. We're, we're listening. We're hearing you.
CHAIR BAlSA: We certainly understand. Members, any more questions for the Department?
Member Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. And thank you, Mr. Director, for
coming by. I know you're quite busy with the press conference upstairs. And, you know,
I know you heard a lot of criticism this morning and, and you hit on an earlier point that
you have made progress. So I want to commend you on that, and the Department. So,
I've always felt that if you're going to openly criticize or suggest improvement also take
time to praise in terms of progress if there has been some progress made. So it would
seem like everything has been moving along inching slowly. I want you to respond to a
question that I had asked Mr. Summers earlier. One of the testifiers had concerns about
the draft plan not being revealed to them and I guess maybe because there seems to be
this sense of I don't want to use the word mistrust or lack of openness between the
Department and the GP AC members. And I asked Mr. Summers is it a Department
policy not to share the, I guess, the pre-draft if you will with any GP AC member who
request it. Can you comment on that and clarify that for me?
MR. HUNT: It shouldn't be construed as, as a lack of trust or that we're doing something in
secret. It's an efficiency issue. We don't want to hand out a draft that, that isn't the draft
we want and then we're correcting and, and addressing issues that, that don't need to be
addressed or don't need to be corrected. Chasing, chasing misinformation or, or policies
that we don't support. It, it doesn't make sense. From our perspective let us work as a,
as a professional unit, come up with a draft that we're all comfortable with. And, and
even amongst the professionals there's debate and, and et cetera. Once we come to
consensus then we hand it out.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. I guess maybe some of the members wanted
to give their input at an earlier point rather than, you know, waiting to get the draft from
you. And again the whole issue is about time and with 30-plus meetings and people just
waiting the frustration builds and builds. So, I can imagine it must have been very tough
for the GP AC members who are here this morning to testify. Because, you know, for me
I was brought up here, maybe it is the perceived local style, you try to resolve your
problems, you know, before coming out in the open like this. And I think the boiling
point had been reached and I can imagine it was very, very difficult for them to openly,
you know, criticize the Department. And it's a no win situation for us but maybe it's
healthy that we finally get to hear these problems expressed openly in this forum rather
than just only at the GP AC meetings or just one to one.
But like Chairman Baisa had stated, you know, we're here to help maybe if we have to
maybe mediate. And I'm hoping that maybe the Mayor can also lend her expertise with
this particular matter. Bill 84, it was her, her creation and I commend her for it because it
was a gutsy thing to do to go out into the community and talk about the planning process
and openly tell the world that, hey, the planning process needs to be improved and it was
true.
So, Mr. Hunt, would you just state, I know the, a lot of it has been centered on the lack of
personnel in the Department, so are we at a state of emergency with the Planning
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Department with the issues that we're currently confronted with? TVRs? This? Is it
your opinion that we are at a state of emergency then?
MR. HUNT: I wouldn't use the, the phrase state of emergency, but I'd say we have a critical
staff shortage in the Planning Department in all divisions.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And it's holding you up from meeting deadlines?
MR. HUNT: It's, it's affecting, it's affecting our work in all our divisions in the processing of
permits, in the enforcement of violations, and the drafting of long range plans.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And one last question as it relates to this, the GP AC. One of
the testifiers felt that it was more a management rather than a problem with the process.
Do you feel there is, do you agree with that or is there anything that you can offer as to
how we can possibly improve the process to help expedite it and hopefully reach our goal
of getting these plans to the Council and so forth?
MR. HUNT: I didn't understand the comment.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. The testifier had mentioned that, well, as what I heard
from him said this is not a process problem it's more of a management problem. So the
feeling I can interpret from the testifier was that as the, maybe as the Director that try to
fix the problem from a management perspective versus, rather than blame the process,
maybe it's more management can offer some better solutions to help expedite the process.
Are, are you in agreement with that? Is there things that you can see that need to be
improved in terms of a management perspective?
MR. HUNT: I think it's probably a number of factors that are involved and I don't think it's fair
to point or say it's, it's not this, it's only that. I think it's, it's a number of factors. Internal
management, there's probably some blame there and we can work to, to, to improve that.
And we will work to improve that. To allude that that is the only problem, I won't accept
that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAlSA: Thank you very much. One quick question and then I'll get to you, Member
Medeiros. Director Hunt, during the discussion with Mr. Summers he brought up a
recommendation and he said he would follow up on it but I just wanted to get your take
on it. And he felt that maybe we should review Bill 84 and maybe it needs another look
at it because maybe it's too ambitious. What's your feeling about that?
MR. HUNT: Well, I'm at a disadvantage because I feel like you've had Mr. Summers and I
wasn't here to listen to him, but I think it's important that people realize one of the
problems with process is that we are starting out on a new process. Bill 84 this is the first
time we've, we've dealt with it. And in any new process there's going to be mistakes and
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missteps and misinterpretations. I think the next go around will be better. We'll know
more or we'll be familiar with Bill 84. I would recommend that after we get through the
Island Plan that we look at Bill 84 and not now. I don't think we want to change horses
in midstream.
I think it's worthy to look at the Bill. There's been a number of suggestions. Even this
morning there was talk that 25 people perhaps is a little large for a committee, just as one
example. There's some other procedural issues that we've noticed in the bill. So I think,
correct me if I'm wrong, but I think we will probably come back and eventually and say
here's some suggested corrections to improve it for next time.
CHAIR BAlSA: Okay. I wanted to open that door and let you know that it is open, and that if
you have suggestions and you let us know we can, we can look at them. Because, you
know, if we have a process and it needs tweaking then maybe we need to tweak it.
MR. HUNT: And just so I'm not misinterpreted I think tweaking or, or slight revisions is the
right word.
CHAIR BAlSA: Correct.
MR. HUNT: For someone to say that Bill 84 -CHAIR BAlSA: No, we're not going throw it away.
MR. HUNT: --is a failure or something.
CHAIR BAlSA: No.
MR. HUNT: I wouldn't agree with that.
CHAIR BAlSA: No. No. I totally agree and I don't think that was what Mr. Summers
intended. Right, John?
MR. SUMMERS: That's correct.
CHAIR BAlSA: Okay. Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Madam Chair. Just finally for myself. In listening
to all the information presented today and to all the testimony and trying to digest and
decipher all of that, coming from the Planning Department my understanding is that if
you offered the draft plan to the GP AC, then you indicated the clock would start as far as
that process. And you're afraid to do that if it wasn't in a form that you felt comfortable
with providing it to the GP AC because of the clock starting.
MR. HUNT: That's our major concern. Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Then the second concern because even when we
offered you possibly to try and get more money, your indication is that the staff shortage
is more critical. Is that correct?
MR. HUNT: I think the staff shortage is very critical. If Mr. Summers believes that he could
use extra money to hire a consultant and, and farm out some of this work, I, I would defer
to him on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Hearing that the, the staff shortage is critical
and we have indicated, and I don't know if you heard it if you were here already or you
just came in, but you know as the Committee and with the leadership of our Committee
Chair, you know, we're going to try and find out what we can do to expedite the
recruitment and hiring process to ... so that you can get your vacancies filled. Now, in
asking that, is the difficulty with filling the vacancies finding qualified people or just the
process of recruitment and hiring?
MR. HUNT: I'm going to offer my comments then I'll turn it over to John. I think it's both and I
think, and maybe we're getting off the subject here but I think the, the problem or the, the
challenges in finding new recruits for the Planning Department is so pervasive across the
board that the Council might start looking into an overall investigation of a solution. It's
not just the Planning Department. It's the County government in general.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. But specifically with the Planning Department
because of the positions that are vacant, is it difficult to fill them because we can't find
potential applicants that can meet the minimum qualifications?
MR. HUNT: And, and that's part of it. And part of that is, is because of the, the cost of living
and, and affordable housing on Maui. So, again it's not an easy solution.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. And, and we understand that that's not particular to
the Planning Department only but to all the Departments and we've heard that along the
way. So, I, I just wanted to, you know, ask that again that those are the two things that I
have heard about the clock starting and then the critical shortage of personnel.
MR. HUNT: Yeah. And the, and the personnel again there's a process that is somewhat
byzantine and very complex and archaic. And I, I think in my opinion it could be
improved and, and made better.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and I agree with you. You know working for the
County for 31 years and being part of the hiring process, there are some options that you
can pursue that are not made evident or available on the surface, but if you pursue it more
there are other options of kind of being a little bit more flexible in the requirements of
hiring that can be pursued. And I think we, we should do that and I think Council,
Committee Chair Baisa has indicated that as a Committee, you know, we will be trying to
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see what we can do to assist the Department in expediting the hiring process and filling
those vacancies. Mahalo, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Just one quick question and I, I don't know if you are aware where
all of your people went but I'm just going ask. Have any of your previous staff gone to
work for the development community or consulting and development in, within
Planning?
MR. HUNT: I believe prior to my stint with the Planning Department some of them have. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So, some of them, some of them have gone into some aspect in the
development community?
MR. HUNT: Yes. That's, that's not uncommon in any jurisdiction.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and I know that other departments have gone to the
development community. I know Corp. Counsel, even Council Services have. So, I
guess what I'm trying to, you know, get at is if people are going into the development
community, then is it the competitiveness of our wages? Is that part of the problem or is
it just the workload or a combination?
MR. HUNT: Well, I'd certainly advocate for higher wages for my staff.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Yeah. But if they are going to private sector, is the feedback that
you're getting wage related?
MR. HUNT: I think that's part of it. Again, there's other issues.
probably one of the biggest ones.

There's, there's housing

VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And, and is there any recommendation that you've been able
to make to your Administration or to Personnel Services to I guess rethink what some of
these wage levels are set at and, and maybe some of even workload management?
Because I have heard one complaint about your Department and that's that people when
they get in there and they see the volume of work and what is expected, they just sort of
throw up their hands and very frightenly [sic] just want to leave because it's
overwhelming.
MR. HUNT: You asked a number of questions and in terms of a comprehensive analysis of, of
the hiring issues or recruitment issues, et cetera, I'm not prepared to, to speak to that off
the top of my head. We, we have made some efforts to address that issue. We recently
had a recruitment incentive program approved by the Department of Personnel where we
can reimburse moving costs, and medical test costs, et cetera. So that's just one example.
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There's other I'm sure I could come up with if I was prepared to have this kind of
discussion.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. And, and this is just, this is just from past experience. One of
the things whether it's I guess it's sometimes the, the way you manage people or the way
you manage your workload or the way you prioritize. One of the things that you may
want to consider as an option, which has been done in other jurisdictions, is to look at
how many applications you can realistically accept during any given year, or if they're
ministerial applications, or you just simply tell the public look we're not prepared staffing
wise your, application is not going to be considered right now. If you have smaller
applications like for little repairs or whatever that you can manage, but if you don't have
the staffing one of the, one of the other jurisdictions that I did speak with, they actually
limited the number of applications or classes of applications that they would take in any
given year. And that was the only way they were able to manage their workload.
MR. HUNT: We've instituted a dual permitting process where the more complex ones go to the
more senior reviewers and the less complex ones aren't held up by them. So that's one
example of a dual process. I'm not sure we, I'm not comfortable with the idea of just
telling people we're not going to take their application or not process it. But as long as
we're talking about applications, one of the solutions is a delegation down of authority to
approve a permit. And that's something that's in the hands of the Council. You guys
could delegate down so the Conditional Permits or, or maybe a better way to say it would
be a permit doesn't require a conditional permit it could handled at the Planning
Commission level. When the TVRIB&B bills come to you in the near future, one of our
proposals is for the B&B's to be handled, handled administratively unless the neighbors
complain. So there's opportunities even at the Council level where we could expedite the
processing and, and workload is an issue. I agree with that.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Okay. I'm just trying to find a way to manage and just because you
have 5,000 applications, you know, of varying types, other jurisdictions have said look,
you know, they do it by lottery system, they do it by other means, but they development a
system whereby there is a process that actually in effect I guess helps them to control the
volume of workload based on the number of people they have working in their
Department.
MR. HUNT: I'm aware of other jurisdictions having some kind of priority system that due to
public benefits, for example, those applications get up into the, the higher priority and
some obviously fall off and don't get processed. That's a legitimate growth management
process but I don't think the Planning Department or the Administration could adopt that
unilaterally. I think if the Council came out with that legislatively we'd be happy to talk
about that.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Thank you.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Members, I think we have discussed this at length.
And if there are no more questions I certainly would like to thank Director Hunt and
Mr. Summers for coming today. It was a very short request. They didn't have a whole
lot of time and they were very, very nice and very helpful and they said yes they would
come here today and be here to listen to everybody and try to see if we could work for a
solution. So, I'm, I'm very grateful to you and I'd like to say thank you very much. I'd
also like to thank the testifiers who came out today to share their manao.
You know, when we do stuff like this I think it's very good for our community. It gets
issues on the table and it's better to talk about it openly then to talk about it behind closed
doors or behind somebody's back 'cause it doesn't make it better. I think when we know
what the issues are, we all, can all work together to, to solve them. So, we wish you the
very best as you proceed with this onerous task and know that, you know, we're very
interested and very willing to participate in any way that we can. So, I'd like to thank you
very much.
And, Committee, because this is an ongoing project, and we may be back here again
talking about who knows what, all of the issues we've heard today, that the Chair would
like to defer consideration pending further discussion because we have no legislative
action before us.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused: GRH)
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. And I'd like to thank the Planning Department.

ITEM NO. 25

HOME OCCUPATIONS (C.c. No. 07-284)

CHAIR BAISA: We have one other item on our agenda today and we've got about ten minutes.
Mr. Alueta has been, Mr. Alueta has been very patiently waiting in the wings for us to get
to PC-2S. I would like to at least introduce it today and if we have to defer it to another
meeting, then we'll have to do that because I'm sure it deserves more than a very cursory
overview. Member Medeiros, I promise you I will try to adjourn the meeting at 12. I
understand we all have needs and appointments and things to do. Okay.
Our second and final item this morning is PC-2S, Home Occupations. I have submitted a
draft resolution to transmit a draft bill to the Planning Commissions. The bill would
establish home occupation as a permitted use in the Residential, R-O Zero Lot Line
Residential, Apartment, Country Town Business, B-1 Neighborhood Business, B-2
Community Business, and B-3 Central Business zoning districts. As defined in Title 19
of the Maui County Code, a home occupation is a residence-based business that provides
a product or service subject to certain listed conditions. For instance, signage, the use of
outside delivery vehicles and customer visits are prohibited. Transient vacation rentals
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and automobile repair shops are not valid home occupations.
occupations is a permitted use only in a few project districts.

Currently, home

I think it is important that we promote home business both for economic development
and to lessen the need for commuting. And I'd also like to add that I see it as a family
strengthening measure because if you're able to do something at home that is not
upsetting your neighbors or your neighborhood and meanwhile take care of your child or
maybe your spouse or your mother or whoever needs some care, I think that we want to
take a good look at this. So, we have no more public testimony. We had some earlier.
So, Members, let's spend the rest of our time if we have a statement maybe from the
Planning Department. Mr. Alueta, are you going to be making a statement before we
take questions?
MR. ALUETA: Yes, if! could.
CHAIR BAlSA: Please go ahead.
MR. ALUETA: Okay. I want to thank you for this bill. ... (end a/tape, start 3B) . .. Comments
are it's a good start and I really, our Department doesn't really have any objections to it
because you're basically, excuse me, referring back to the home occupation definition.
So, if you look at your 19.04, I'm not sure if 19.04 was provided for you for the definition
of home occupation, it is restrictive, very restrictive in nature. So, from that aspect I
don't have too much of an objection to the resolution because it's very straightforward.
There's a definition for home occupation. It just provides clarity that home occupation is
a permitted use within the Residential District for, of 19.08, as well as 19.09 and 19.12
which is the Apartment Districts.
I do not believe it's unnecessary to add them to 19.15, which is the B-CT or any of the
Business Districts because businesses are allowed anyway. So if someone has a
single-family, existing single-family residence or whatever and they want to run a
business for home occupation, I don't think it's necessary to list it because it's, you're,
you're having a very limited type of business operations and I think that they would be
already covered by the permitted uses within the various business districts. That's just
my opinion from reviewing the draft bill.
My main concern I guess with going forward with the ordinance is that we have a
tendency to Christmas tree, Christmas tree, and then I'll get to it and other issues will be
added on to this, which could create a problem and then bog down the process. So, if the
bill is handled as it is and goes through and that's it, no problem. As long as we
recognize that we will come back to deal with some the more significant issues with
regards to home occupation. Because you're going to have to deal with the comments
and, and questions that come in to, come out from the public, as well as you heard from
the Chamber of Commerce, which I totally disagree with the majority of their comments.
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You're going to have to deal with one Amway because under the home occupation you're
not going to be able to do group selling, selling of products. They, they could deliver
products but people couldn't come to do Tupperware parties, Pampered Chef parties.
You haven't dealt with garage sales. I think that needs to be defined somewhere as
limitations on garage sales. Firearm dealers. A lot of our requests as a, as a Planner,
Junior Planner, one of the things I dealt with was requests from the Federal Government
for certification because people were, were dealing firearms out of their homes and they
got a license and it was a home occupation. Nobody, everything was just delivered by
the Post Office and they, but they were licensed arms dealers. So you had the storage of
firearms and even ammunition so that became an issue.
So, as long as, I mean so you have, there, there are those people who are doing that. And
then you're going to have can, can people do, use accessory structures. So that was some
of the questions. Under the existing definition it, it says 25 percent of the floor area of
the dwelling. As you know, there are a lot of McMansions being built. It's not
uncommon to have a 4,000 - 8,000 square foot home. So you're talking, you could have
1,000 square foot home office. Maybe that's appropriate. Maybe I mean it's just you
have it by percentage within the definitions.
The ... I think the reason that this ordinance came out which I appreciate is that it kind
of codifies some of the things that the Department has been handling on what we call
Administrative, you know, Administrative Rules basis. There was a memo from our
Department that, from our, from our office and how we dealt with home occupations
because we considered it to be already an appropriate use within the Residential Districts.
And the standards that the Department currently uses is that again similar to what the
definition is of home occupation, you know, nobody, no persons other than the immediate
family can work at the thing so you don't get outside activities. But the Department also
set ... because it was vague we set a cap at 240 square feet of how big of an area could be
used. And we restrict it to only the house itself and cannot include the garage, carports,
lanais or other non-habitable areas. So it has to be limited to that.
Other key things that came about with regards to we set up the no noise, traffic, visual
blight, air or water pollution in the environment in creating this activity. You know, no
exchange of products. But I think that, like I say, on the surface as a resolution it
provides clarity to those who are, can meet the definition as in, under 19.04. Again,
you're going to have other people trying to Christmas tree hang. Again, what
do ... ukulele classes. I mean I lived on Mission Street. There's a ukulele class down
the road on Mission Street. Every Saturday the kids come and tutu teaches them ukulele.
It's something common. Hula halaus, hula classes, stuff like that.
And so, I'm fine with the ordinance as, the resolution as presented. I just want to make it
clear from a Department standpoint that we would be coming back later on. We feel that
some of these other issues or other type of activities should be handled as an accessory
use. We had drafted a bill back in, let's see, we had originally drafted a bill back in April
of '04. Okay. That's almost four years ago. And we tried getting it through and it, it was
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or through some of the commissions and through internal and we, we weren't able to get
through it. And it was, and the reason it didn't go forward is from the Home Occupation
Bill side was that it was being bundled together with the overall revisions to Title 19 and
19.510. I'm sure you've heard this story long ago how many times.
And I, and I, the philosophy of the previous administrator was to try to do one big
massive overhaul of Title 19. That has not been the methodology which since I took over
has been. Mine has been more of let's pick out what we can get. There are some
structural changes but as long we have a master plan and we restructure each section by
section so that eventually we, we've completed the whole thing. But as long as we have a
overall blueprint of what we want Title 19 to look at, look like, we can pick out one
section or add sections at a time. And I think that's, seems to be more digestible at the, at
the community level and at the different Planning Commissions. 'Cause even with the
TVR bill, the Bed and Breakfast bill because it's a package of six ordinances it's been
hard to digest. So it's not going to be, and 19.510 and the revision of the whole Maui
Title 19. It would be a package of over 20 ... 20 different amendments. And I, and I
don't think it's doable.
So, again no problem with this ordinance as long as we stick to defining as it is with the
understanding that the Department will be coming back later on to add accessory uses to
the Residential District and coming up with standards and a table format of to try to
address some of the garage sale, Tupperware parties, hula halaus, and stuff like that. So
we can, and, and establish some type of administrative or, or commission review permit
process.
CHAIR BAlSA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Madam Chair. And thank you for this bill and I
know we're pressed for time -CHAIR BAlSA: And thank you, Mr. Alueta.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --and I know the intent here is just we're going to refer this
over to the Planning Commissions. And once it gets back to us then we can go full board
all of our questions. I just want to ask one quick question and -CHAIR BAlSA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
--get Mr. Aleuta's comments.
You know, in some
neighborhoods you have people who I guess it would be perceived as maybe a home
based business with, they have limousines or large vehicles that deal with delivery maybe
tow trucks and they're using on-street public parking, which sometimes create a hazard
for residents who live on narrow streets and people who park on the other side of the
street which could impede emergency vehicles as well. Is that something that might be
considered to add into this bill as part of a prohibition if you have a business that uses
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large vehicles and or maybe at least restrict them from using on street parking? Maybe
they should, you know, park on their property but not on, be on, the use of on-street
parking.
MR. ALUET A: That's, that's a good point and that could be a simple amendment to the existing
definition of home occupation, as well as again whether or not you feel that the, a
percentage with a cap for the size of it, of that home occupation should be also be
amended. We, we can look at that, that, you know, any vehicles used by the
owner/proprietor be done and be maintained on site. How we've handled it and how we
handle it now is that unless there is a prohibition from the Police Department or from the
Highways Department that says no parking, we cannot make a determination or enforce
that type of issue. Because it's like any other registered vehicle, if parking is allowed on
the street, then they're allowed to park on the street. And the only way to, to deal with
those issues are, one, potentially if, you know, you want to define home occupation that
any vehicle used for that home occupation has to be stored on site. That's, that's a good
way.
Another, one of the funny amendments that we would probably come back with when we
do, when we take it to the Planning Commission would be that the, the definition in the
19.04. It talks about chattel which is slaves and I don't think you need that. So, I think
that can be stricken. It's kind of an old term. But if you look up the definition of what it
is it's slave or personal property. And, and if it's a business it's not really either one. So,
we're going to clean that up when, when it comes back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Madam Chair.

Yeah, sounds good.

Thank you, Mr. Alueta.

Thank you,

CHAIR BAlSA: Okay. Members, keep an eye on the clock. Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Very quickly. Mahalo, Madam Chair. How would this as
it stands now affect areas like Hana with interim zoning?
MR. ALUET A: Home, a definition of a home occupation is dwelling unit. So, they're, dwelling
units are allowed in the Interim District. You would not, I guess you would still be in an
ambiguous state because the proposed ordinance only talks about home occupation
within the Residential District.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Specifically.
MR. ALUET A: So, so you would need to, so you would need to add Interim District in home
occupation. And I would be very specific that if you do amend 19.02, which is the
Interim District, that you say that it's home occupation within an existing single-family
structure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MR. ALUET A: Because within the Interim District other uses are permitted including hospitals
and stufflike that. So, you want to be specific that it be to the single-family residence.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Very quickly. Next. You did come across and
mention what, you know, what is one of my questions is hula lessons, ukulele lessons,
piano lessons that occur in, you know, residences. So, are you saying some of these will
be restricted under this?
MR. ALUET A: They, they are currently restricted. Piano lessons, sewing lessons are
considered normal functions. They're listed I believe within the Residential District. It's
group instructions. Group instructions would, is currently prohibited and technically are.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And ifit's single person instructions?
MR. ALUET A: I believe the Code already allows for the, the normal function of one. I don't
have the Code in ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, it's just group instructions.
MR. ALUETA: I believe we're going to look it up right now for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And while they're looking it up, now, this is only
pertains if there's an exchange of monies for those services?
MR. ALUETA: If money is ... does it change, you mean, does it matter if money is exchanged?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. What if a kupuna wants to teach hula and not charge
for it at her home? And they're not in business -MR. ALUETA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --right so that would be allowed but as soon as you charge
for it then it's restricted?
MR. ALUETA: I'll defer to my Corp. Counsel on that one.
CHAIR BAlSA: Members, I don't want to cut you off and -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR BAlSA: --you know if we have a lot of questions although I was really hopeful today
that we could try to get this out and send it to the Planning Commissions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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CHAIR BAISA: The reason is, my reasoning is we are going to go into Budget and it will give
the Planning Commissions a good time, a lot of time to think about this. But we do have
another meeting this month and we can defer this item to then. You can, you,
you ... okay, as long as everybody is okay I'm willing to go like for another ten minutes
if we can get to a point where we feel comfortable. But if we're not, we can always put it
on our next agenda. But, you know, I don't want to make you feel rushed like I can't ask
my questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Madam Chair, then, you know, I can wait for an
answer to that question in a later meeting but what I do want to ask -CHAIR BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --in this meeting is that I'd like to request that this also be
sent to the Hana Advisory Committee because it will affect the Hana District a lot. And
because it's only going to the Planning Commissions, Hana would be left out in any kind
of input and I, I'd request that of the Chair and of the Department if that's available.
CHAIR BAISA: We can add that to our approval.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: Because of what Mr. Alueta had basically said and because this has
to go through a process where it is going to be reviewed plus the recommendations will
come back to us with some of the very issues that we may raise. I don't have any
problem actually moving this forward because we have so few meetings left that I would
rather give an opportunity to the Planning Commissions and also the Planning
Department to just at least move this forward. For the longest time I felt so bad because I
feel like people who are doing home occupations they have almost no impact. If
somebody does an internet based business they're criminals and I want to de-criminalize
home occupations. Because many of these individuals they're not hurting anyone. And
as you said earlier they're able to stay home with their families, there's nobody coming to
their door. I, I really want this to move forward because it's been one of my I guess real
concerns every since I got on the Council. And we got derailed for the very issues that
were raised by Mr. Alueta before.
I know even there was another draft bill that had come out which was real comprehensive
in changing definitions and all kind of things. So, if this is just going to at least allow
some legitimacy and some thought and discussion in moving this issue forward, Madam
Chair, I am all for it. And I would rather move this along so that that discussion can take
place and then the feedback can be given to us.
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CHAIR BAISA: Members, other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Recommendation.
CHAIR BAISA: Recommendation of the Chair is that we approve the referral of this bill, this,
this resolution to the Planning Commissions and I would like to also amend that to add
the--is it the Hana Advisory Council?-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Committee.
MR. ALUETA: Committee.
CHAIR BAISA: --committee for their review and comments and then of course they'll bring it
back to us and I'd like to see that happen.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved.
CHAIR BAISA: I need a motion to that effect.
VICE-CHAIR JOHNSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Second.
CHAIR BAISA: Very good. We have a motion and a second. Any questions, comments? How
about from Director Hunt or from legal?
MR. HUNT: We would just like to as, as Joe alluded to include some definitions or exemptions
so some of these businesses that don't have any impacts at all that they're--I don't want to
get into the crafting of the definition--but low impacts. Let's just say that, that those are
exempted from needing a permit. So we want to head down that road.
CHAIR BAISA: And so, you'll be bringing that as part of your recommendations that you send
back to us?
MR. ALUETA: We're looking to do that as, as a separate ordinance.
CHAIR BAISA: As a separate ordinance.
MR. ALUET A: Correct. That we come back for, we'll remove some of these other items that
have low impacts but go down to an accessory use permit. Currently, in the Residential
District sewing and piano playing would be considered a Special Use Permit, County
Special Use Permit and we think we can sort of move that down into a different level of
permit process that's a little easier as well as include some of these other items. Like I
said, you know, Pampered Chef, you know, I don't want to promote anybody but group
where they come in and they try to do a group sale to people.
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CHAIR BAISA: Okay. Is everybody clear on what we're doing here? We're going to adopt this
motion and adopt, we're going to approve the motion to adopt the resolution sending it
out to the Planning Commissions as well as to the Hana Advisory Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes.
CHAIR BAISA: And we will await another bill of course from the Planning Department to take
care of what they would like to recommend. All those in favor say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR BAISA: Opposed? The motion carries.
AYES:

Councilmembers Medeiros and Molina, Vice-Chair Johnson, and
Chair Baisa.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE:

EXC.:

Councilmember Hokama.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of revised resolution.

CHAIR BAISA: I would like to thank once again my wonderful Planning Committee. I
certainly appreciate working with all of you. It's been a wonderful year and we're starting
off on another wonderful year. I'd like to thank the staff and I'd like to especially say
mahalo to the Planning Department. Thank you very much for all the hard work you do.
And, and on that note, our meeting is adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

12:12 p.m.
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